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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE To the parish President and Members of the Tangipahoa Parish Council Amite, Louisiana 
We have audited the primary government financial statements of Tangipahoa Parish Council, Louisiana, as of and for the: year ended Deeember 31, 1996, and have issued our report thereon dated June 4, 1997. These primary government financial statements are the responsibility of Tangipahoa Parish Council, Louisiana, management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these primary government financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standard~. issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and the provisions of Office of Management and Budget Circular A-128, Audits of State andLocal Governments. Those standards and OMB Circular A-128 require flint we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the primary government fmancial statentents are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the primary government financial statemenL~. An audit also includes assessing the accotmting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement present,~tion We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for otu" opiniou. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion o11 the primary government financial statements of Tangipahoa Parish Council, Louisiana, taken as a whole. The accompanying Schedule of Federal Financial Assistance is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the primary government financial statements. The infommtion in that schedule has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the primary government financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly presented in all material respects in relation to the primary government financial statements taken as a whole. 
Bruce Harrell & Co., CPAs Hanmaond, Louisiana June 4, 1997 



 
TANGIPAHOA PARISH COUNCIL Amite, Louisiana COMBINED BALANCE SHEET ALL FUND TYPES AND ACCOUNT GROUPS December 31, 1996 

ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS Cash and cash equivalents Restricted Cash Receivables Due from other governments Due from other funds Property, plant, and equipment Deposits with deferred compensation Amonnt available in debt service fund Amount to be provided for retirement of general long-term debt Landfill closure and postclosure care costs Total Assets 

GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES 

1,190,058 $ 0 775,151 104,761 43,299 0 0 0 

SPECIAL REVENUE 
4,706,151 $ 0 3,291,964 14,991 1,450 0 0 0 

DEBT SERVICE 
65,564 $ 0 357,371 0 0 0 0 0 

CAPITAL PROJECTS 
46,906 0 0 0 0 460,519 0 0 0 0 

0 0 0 0 
$ 2,113,268 $ 8,014,556 $ 422,935 $ 507,425 

Accounts payable $ Current Maturities Accz~ed Expenses DUe to other funds Intergovernmental payable Due to HUD DUe to plan participants Judgement Payable Revenue Bonds Payable Bonds payable Lease-purchases payable Estimated liability for landfill closure care costs 
Total Liabilities Continued on the following page 

153,!~16 0 37,183 0 76,656 0 0 0 0 0 0 

$ 1,179,368 $ 0 131,860 27,646 2,942 407,747 0 0 0 0 0 

13,471 $ 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

31,293 0 0 17,103 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
267,355 1,749,563 13,471 48,396 

The notes to tho flnana~al state~ents are an integral part of th/s statement. 



PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES INTERNAL ENTERPRISE SERVICE FUND FUND 
$ 32,095 $ 9,128 39,056 0 0 2,188,414 0 O 

0 
0 

201,668 $ 0 0 0 0 49,244 0 O 
0 0 

FIDUCIARY FUND TYPE TRUST AND GENERAL AGENCY GENERAL LONG-TERM FUNDS FIXED ASSETS DEBT 
72,370 0 1,037 17,928 0 0 451,954 0 
0 0 

o$ 0 0 0 0 23,003,983 0 0 

o$ 0 0 0 0 0 0 409,464 

STATEMENT A 

6,314,812 9,128 4,464,578 137,680 44,749 25,702,160 451,954 409,464 
0 1,836,643 1,836,643 0 4,303,720 4,303,720 

$ 2,268,693 $ 250,912 $ 543,288 $ 23,003,983 $ 6,549,827 $ 43,674,887 
5,035 10,244 5,658 0 24,607 0 0 0 782,811 0 18,837 

269 0 21,645 0 0 0 0 O 0 0 0 

91,334 0 0 0 0 0 451,954 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 847,193 21,914 543,288 

o$ o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 575,473 0 0 0 i., 543,759 0 126,875 0 4,303,720 4,303,720 
0 6,549,827 10,041,006 



 

TANGIPAHOA PARISH COUNCIL Amit e, Louisiana (~MBINED BALANCE SHEET ALL FL~D TYPES AND ACCOUNT GROUPS December 31, 1996 

Contributed Capital Investment in general fixed assets Retained Earnings Re:3erved Unzeserved Reserved for: Debt service Urn: ese rved-un~esignat e d 
Total Fund Equity 

o $ C) 
0 0 
0 1,845,913 

1,845,913 

SPECIAL REVENUE 
05 0 
0 0 
0 6,264,993 

6,264,993 

DEBT SERVICE 
05 0 
0 0 

409,464 0 
409,464 

CAPITAL PROJECTS 
0 0 
0 0 
0 459,029 

459,029 
Total Liabilities and ~h/nd Equity $ 2,113,268 $ 8,014,556 $ 422,935 $ 507,425 
(Concluded) 

The notes to the financial statements are an integ~!al part of this starer. 
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PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES INTERNAL ENTERPRISE SERVICE FUND FUN]) 
1,422,605 $ 0 9,128 (10,232) 0 0 

05 0 0 228,998 0 0 

FIDUCIARY FUND TYPE TRUST AND GENERA/, TOTAL AGENCY GENERAL LONG-TERM (MEMORANDUM) FUNDS .}~IXED ASSETS DEBT (ONLY) 
05 05 0 23,003,983 
0 0 0 0 

0 O 
0 0 

STATEMENT A (Continued) 

0 $ 1,422,605 0 23,003,983 0 0 
0 0 
9,128 218,766 409,464 8,569,936 1,421,501 228,998 0 23,003,983 0 33,633,881 

$ 2,268,693 $ 250,912 $ 543,288 $ 23,003,983 $ 6,549,827 $ 43,674,887 



 
TANGIPAWOA PARISH COUNCIL Amlte, I~ulslana COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENI~S, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES ]IN FUN[) BALANCES ALL GOVERNMENTAL }~'D TYPES Fo~ The Twelve Months Ended December 31. 1996 

REVEh"JE~ Taxes: Sales Ad val3rem Franchise Licenses and pex~ults Intergovernmental revenues: Federal funds: Federal grants Food Stamp Program State funds: Parish transportation funds State revenue sharing Severance tax State grants Video poker Alcoholic beverage tax Louisiana commJsslon on law enforcement Fees, charges, and co,mlsslons for services Fines and forfeitures Interest other revenues Total Revenues EXPENDITURES General Government: Le91slatlve Judicial Elections Finance and Adm~nJstratlve Public Safety Public Works Health and welfare Debt Service: Principal Interest and agent fees Total Expenditures Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 
Continued on the following page! 

GE~:RAL 

0 51,178 

26,691 288 67,827 292.033 

SPECIAL REVENUE .FUNDS 
6,171,459 $ 2,319,198 O 11.560 
555,382 O 

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 
05 358,044 O 0 
0 0 

STATEMENT B 

CAPITAL TOTAL PROJECTS (MEMORANDUM FUNDS 

555,38~ 51,~70 

290,109 1,078,748 73,441 212,966 998,908 841,090 295,257 O 0 

O 400,298 O 110 869,955 8,841,699 1,202.231 125,951 13.449 3.790.508 ii.453.693 
225,000 92,529 350,951 105,978 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement 



Proceeds from bond sales Sale of fixed assets Operating transfers In Operating transfers out 

TANGIpAHOA PARISH C~UNCIL Amite, I~uisiarm COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVE~q~:S, EXPENI)ITURES, AND C~ANGES IN FUA~) BALANCES ALL GOVEPJ{MENTAL FI;ND TYPES For The Twelve Months Ended [~:cember 31, 1996 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses 
Excess of Revenues and Other Sources Over (under) Expenditures and Other Uses Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 

Concluded 

$ 05 0 37,684 (307,690) 270,006 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
05 488,763 150,690 267,040) 

DEBT SERVI(~ FUNDS 

STATEMENT B (Continued) 

CAPITAL TOTAL PROJECTS ( MEMORA~'DUM, Fu~s 
700,000 $ 0 443,734 0 

23,365) 1.597.473 4,567.921 432,829 ]5 6,598,238 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement 



 
TANGIPAHOA pARISH COt~CIL Amite, Louisiana COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXFEND]7%~ES. AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS} A~) ACTUAL GENERAL AND SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS For The T~elvc Months Ended December 3~, 1996 

REVENUES Taxe~:: Sales Ad va~orem FrarLchlse Licer~se8 and permits Xnte~governmental revenues: Federal funds: Federal grants Food Stamp Program State funds: Parish transportation funds State revenue sharing Severance tax State grants Video poker A]cobollc beverage tax Fees, charges, and co~isslons for services Fine~i and forfeitures Interes~ Other revenues 
EXPENDI~3RES General Government: Legislative Judicial Eleetlons Finance and Administrative Public Safety Public Works Wealth and welfare Debt SerVice: Prlnclpal Interest and agent fees Total Expenditures 

2,000,000 300,000 150,000 564.200 
0 50. 000 0 90,000 250,o00 60,000 280,000 30,000 15,o00 225 60,000 342.500 

$ 2,057,153 342,845 131,556 553.389 
0 51.170 0 88,395 345,412 61,302 255,904 34,993 26,691 285 67,827 292,033 

Favorable (unfavorable VARIANCE 

0 1.170 0 (1,605 95,412 1,302 24,096 4,993 11,691 60 7,827 50.467 
298,870 1,111,070 93,900 208,000 1,222,360 1,799,133 509.480 0 0 

290,109 1,070,740 73,441 212,956 999,908 841,090 295,257 0 0 

8,761 32,522 20,459 (4,956 223,452 958,023 214,223 0 0 
Exce~:s of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (1,050,868 
Continued on the followin9 page 
The notes to the flnancfal statements are an integral part of this statement 



REVENUE;~ Taxes: Sales Ad valorem Franchise Licenses and pewits Intergovernmental revenues: Pederal funds: Fede:[al grants Food Stamp Program State funds: Parish transportation funds State revenue sharing Seve:cance tax State grants Video poker Alcoholic beverage tax Fees, charges, and co~Isslons Fines and forfeitures Interest Other revenues 

$ 6,080,000 $ 1,522,635 0 0 
56?,073 0 780 632 83 
i, 388 70 237 12 

555.382 0 887,044 623,294 0 82,738 0 0 386,274 460.436 267,134 13,835 

Favorable Unfavorable VARIANCE 

11,691 0 

EXPENDITDRES General Government: Legislative Judicial Elections Finance and Administrative Public Safety Public Works Health and welfare Debt Se:~Ice: Principal Interest and agent fees Total Expenditures 

8 33,525 0 0 822,029 9,524,260 1,223,850 0 8 

0 400,298 0 ii0 869,955 8,841,699 1,202.231 125,951 13,449 125,951 (13,449 
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (310,089) 1,324,660 1,634,749 
Continued on the following page 
Excludes Criminal Court Special Revenue Fttnd 

i0 

STATEMENT C 



 
TANGIPAHOA PARISH COUNCIL Amite, Louisiana COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITORES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES . BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL GENERAL AND SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS For The Twelve Months Ended December 31, 1996 

Sale of flxed assets Operating transfers in Operating transfers out Total Other Financing Sources (Uses 

GENERAL FUND Favorable (Unfavorable BUDGET ACTUAL VARIANCE 
$ 05 0 (I05,122) 0 37,684 202,568 

Excess of Revenues and Other Sources C~er (Under) Expenditures and Other Uses (i,~55,990) 248,440 1,404,430 Fund B~lances at Eeglnning of Year 

Concluded 
0 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral ])art of this statement 

Ii 



Total Other Financing Sources (Uses 
Excess of Revenues and Other Sources Over (Under] Expenditures and Other Uses Fund Ba:~ances at Begi~mivg of Year 
Fund Ea~[ances at End of Year 
Concluded 

Excludes Criminal Court Special Revenue Fund 

BUDGET 
327,226 $ 105,000 0 432.226 

Favorable (Unfavorable ACTUAL VARIANC[I 
161,537 45,690 (267,040 372.413 (59,813 
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STATEMENT C (Continued) 



 
Tanglpah0a Parish Council Amlt e, Louisiana STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN RE:TAIRED EARNINGS - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE For Th~ Twelve Months Ended December 3], 1996 

OPERATING REVENUES Charges for services Other revenue Total Operating Revenues 
OPERATING EXPENSES Personnel sez~Ices Materials and supplies Professional services Repairs and maintenance Other expenses Depreciation Total Operating Expense 
Operating Gain 
NON-OPERATING REVENUES {EXPENSES Interest income Interest expense Total Non-OperstJng Revenues (Expenses 
Net Profit (Loss 

ENTERPRISE FUND Favorable (Unfavorable BUDf~ET ACTUAL VARIANCE 
$ 29],000 $ 300,669 $ ~.280 2,400 9,669 1,208 292,200 303,069 10,869 

65,904 3,841 25,193 80,535 33,358 71.084 
796 2,759 (5,071 9,115 1,077 37,958 

1,500 40,000 2,300 46,149 800 6,149 

Add depreciation on fixed assets acquired by donations that reduce contributed capital 0 48,465 48,465 
Increase in Retained Earnings Retained Earnings {Deficit Besinning of Year 
Retained Earnings {Deficit at End of Year 

3.067 27.770 24.703 
0 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement 
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STATEMENT D 



 
TangJpahoa Parish Council Amite, Louisiana STAT~4ENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS - BUDGS"r (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE For The Twelve Months Ended December 3], 1996 

OPERATING REVENUES Charges for services Other revenue Total Operating Revenues 
OPERATING EXPENSES Personnel services Materials and supplies Professional services Repairs and .mlntenance Other expenses Depreciation Total Operatin9 Expense 
Operating Gain (I~ss NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES Interest Income 
Net Income (Loss Retained Earnings Beglnn~ng of Year 
Retained Earnings at End of Year 

BO]XL~:T Favorable (Unfavorable ACTUAL VARIANCE 
$ 365,460 $ 488,200 $ 122,740 125 125 S 
324,911 24,096 2,009 9,407 25,139 22,180 

5,041 40,904 991 4,793 9,061 22,180 

i:[,000 12.194 1,194 
136.221 136.221 0 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement 

1.4 

STATEMENT D (Continued) 



 
TANGIPAHOA PARISH COUNCIL Amite, Louisiana COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS PROPRIETARY" FUND TYPES For the Year Ended December 31, 1996 

Cash Flows :From Operating Activities: Operating Income Adjustments to reconcile net operating income to Depreciation Change in Accounts Receivable Change in Due from Other Funds Change in Accounts Payable Change in Accrued Expenses Change in Due to Other Funds Change in Due to Others Net cash provided by operating activities 

Enterprise Fund Internal Service Fund 
$ 25,455 $ 92,777 
71,084 (1,768) 
(55) (3,816) (32,500) __ 24.607 83,007 

Cash Flows From Noneapital Financing Activities: Principal repayments (3,131) Interest Paid __ (46.149) Net Cash (Used For) Noncapital Financing Activities (49,281) 
Cash FIowsFromCapitalandRelatedFinancing Activities: Payments for capital acquisitions Proceeds from borrowings Net Cash (used for) capital and related financing activities: Net Cash Increase for the Year Cash at Beginning of Year Cash at End of Year 

(28,494) _ 22.252 

22,180 
32,500 158 3,622 
151,237 

(15,901) 
(6,242) (15,901) 27,485 13,738 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
3.!5 

135,336 66,332 $ 201.668 

STATEMENT E 



INTRODUCTION 
TANGIPAHOA PARISH COUNCIL Amite, Louisiana Notes to tile Financial Statements As of and for the Year' Ended December 31, 1996 

The Tangipahoa Parish Council is the governing authority for the Parish of Tangipahoa, Louisiana. The Parish of Tangipahoa operates under a home rule charter and is governed by the "council-president" form of government. An elected council often members representing the various districts within the parish constitute the legislative branch of the government and an elected president is the chief executive officer and head of the executive branch. The council and president serve four-year terms that expire in January 2000. Louisiana Revised Statute 33:1236 gives the Tangipahoa Parish Council various powers in regulating and directing the affairs of the parish and its inhabitants. The more notable of those is the power to make regulations for its own government; to regulate the construction and maintenance of roads, bridges, and drainage systems; to regulate the sale of alcoholic beverages; and to provide for the health and welfare of the poor, disadvantaged, and unemployed in tile parish. Funding to accomplish these tasks is provided by ad valorem and sales taxes, beer and alcoholic beverage permits, state revenue sharing, and various other state and federal grants. Tangipahoa Parish occupies approximately 818 square miles with a population of approximately 94,000. The parish council maintains approximately 1100 miles of roads, 550 miles of which are paved and 550 of which are g~avel. Parish council omces are located in the parish courthouse in Amite, Louisiana, with road maintenance facilities located at 2 locations within the parish. 
1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES A. REPORTING ENTITY 
As the governing authority of the parish, for reporting purposes, the Tangipahoa Parish Council is the financial reporting entity for Tangipahoa Parish. The financial reporting entity consists of (a) the primary government (Tangipahoa Parish Council), (b) organizations for which the primary government is financially accountable, and (c) other organizations for which nature and significance of their relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 14 established criteria for deternaining wtfich component units should be considered part of the Tangipahoa Parish Council for financial reporting purposes. The basic criterion for including a potential component unit within the reporting entity is financial accountability. The GASB has set forth criteria to be considered in determining financial accountability. This criteria includes: 1. Appointing a voting majority of an orgartization's governing body, and a. The ability of the Tangipahoa Parish Council to impose its will on that organization and/or 

:1.6 



 
TANGIPAI]OA PARISH COUNCIL Amite~ Louisiana Notes to the Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 1996 b. The potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to or impose specific financial burdens on the Tangipahoa Parish Council. 2. Organizations for which the Tangipahoa Parish Council does not appoint a voting majority but are fiscally dependent on the Tangipahoa Parish Council. 3. Organizations for which the reporting entity financial statements would be misleading if data of the organization is not included because of the nature or significance of the relationship. 

Based on the previous criteria, the Tangipahoa Parish Council has determined that the following component units are part of the reporting entity: Fiscal Criteria Year End Used Communication District Number 1 12/31 Gravity Drainage District Number 1 12/31 Gravity Drainage District Number 4 12/31 Gravity Drainage District Number 5 12/31 Construction Board of Adjustments and Appeals 12/31 Fire Protection District Number 1 12/31 Gas Utility District Number 1 12/31 Hospital Service District Number 1 06/30 Hospital Service District Number 2 12/31 Industrial Development District Number 1 12/31 Industrial Development District Number 2 12/3 l Hammond Area Recreation District Number 1 12/31 Ponchatoula Area Recreation District Number 1 12/31 Recreation Di,;trict Number 5 12/31 Recreation District Number 6 12/31 Recreation District Number 39A 12/31 Tangipahoa Parish Industrial Development Board 12/31 Tangipahoa Parish Library 12/31 Tangipahoa Parish Planning Commission 12/31 Tangipahoa Parish Tourist Commission 12/31 Water District Number 8 12/31 Husser-Loranger Water District 12/31 Tangipahoa Water District 12/31 The Tangipahoa Parish Council has chosen to issue financial statements of the primary government (Tangipahoa Parish Council) only; therefore, none of the previously listed component units are included in the, accompanying financial statements. 
17 



 
TANGIPAIIOA PARISH COUNCIL Amite, Louisiana Notes to the Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 1996 These primary government (Tangipahoa Parish Council) financial statements include all funds, account groups, and organizations for which the Tangipahoa Parish Council maintains the accounting records. The organizations for which the Tangipahoa Parish Council maintains the accounting records are considered part of the primary government (Tangipahoa Parish Council) and include Fire Protection District No. 2, Rex-reation Districts No. 1 and No. 2, Twenty-First Judicial Criminal Court Fund, and Sewerage Distwict No. 

GASB Staternent No. 14 provides for the issuance of primary government financial statements that are separate from those of the reporting entity, ttowever, the primary government's (Tangipahoa Parish Council) financial statements are not a substitute for the reporting entity's financial statements. The accompanying primary government financial statements have been prepared in conformity with gene~ ally accepted accounting principles as applied to governmental units. These financial statements are not intended to and do not report on the reporting entity but rather are intended to reflect only the finatLcial statements of the primary government (Tangipahoa Parish Council). 
Considered in the determination of component units of the reporting entity were the Tangipahoa Parish School Board, Tax Assessor, Clerk of Court, and Sheriff; the 21st Judicial District and the District Attorney's Office for the 21st Judicial District, and the various municipalities in the parish. It was determined that these governmental entities are not component units of the Tangipahoa Parish Council reporting entity because they have separately elected governing bodies, are legally separate, and are fiscally independent of the Tangipahoa Parish Council. B. FUND ACCOUNT~G 
The Tangipahoa Parish Council uses funds and account groups to report on its financial position and the res'olts of its operations. Fund accounting is designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to aid financial management by segregating transactions relating to certain government functions or activities. A tired is a separate accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. On the other hand, an account group is a financial reporting device designed to provide accountability for certain assets and liabilities that are: not recorded in the funds because they do not directly affect net expendable available financial resources. Funds of the Tangipahoa Parish Council are classified into three categories: governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary. In turn, each category is divided into separate fund types. The fund classifications and a description of each existing fund type follow: 

18 



 
TANGIPAIIOA PARISH COUNCIL Amite, I,ouisiana Notes to the Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 1996 

Governmental Funds Governmental funds are used to account for all or most of the Tangipahoa Parish Council's general activities, including the collection and disbursement of specific or legally restricted monies, the acquisition or construction of general fixed assets, and the servicing of general long-term debt. Governmental funds include: 1. General Fund--the general operating fund of the Tangipahoa Parish Council and accounts for all financial resources, except those required to be accounted for in other funds. 2. Special revenue funds--account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified lmrposes, Debt service funds--account for transactions relating to resources retained and used fox the payment of principal and interest on those long-term obligations recorded in the general long- term obligations account group. 4. Capital projects funds--account for financial resources received and used for the acquisi|ion, construction, or improvement of capital facilities not reported in the other governmental funds. Proprietary Funds 
Proprietary funds are used to account for activities similar to those found in the private sector, where the determination of net income is necessary or useful to sound financial administration. Proprietary funds differ from governmental funds in that their focus is on income measurement, which, together with the maintenance of equity, is an important financial indicator. Proprietary funds include: Enterprise funds--account for operations (a) where the intent of the governing body is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges, or (b) whcre the governing body has decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses in cuN ed, and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, or other purposes. 
The enterprise fund is the Sewerage District No. 1 Fund, established by the parish governing authority under provisions of Louisiana Revised Statute 33:881. The district is governed by a five-member board of commissioners, which is appointed by the parish council. Financing is provided by user fees. 2. Internal service funds--account for the financing of goods or services provided by one department to other departments or governments on a cost-reimbursement basis. 

1.9 



 
TANGIPA]]OA PARISH COUNCIL Amite~ Louisiana Notes to the Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 1996 The internal service fund is the Administrative Fund, established by the council to render administrative and accounting services to various funds. It receives a fee from each fund based on a combination of revenues received and services rendered for that fund. 

Fiduciary Funds Fiduciary fimds are used to account for assets held on behalf of outside parties, including other governments, or on behalf of other funds within the Tangipaboa Parish Council. Fiduciary funds include an agency fund which accounts for assets that the Tangipahoa Parish Council holds on behalf of others as their agent. Agency funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve measurement of results of operations. C. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its measurement focus. All govenunental funds are accounted for using a current financial resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities are generally included on the balance sheet. Operating statements of these funds present increases and decreases in net current assets. The modified accrual basis of accounting is used by all governmental funds and agency funds. The governmental funds use the following practices in recording revenues and expenditures: 
Revenues Revenues are recognized in the accounting period in which they become both available and measurable. Licenses and permits, charges for services, fines and forfeitures, and miscellaneous revenues are recorded as revenues when received in cash. General property taxes, self=assessed taxes, and investment earnings are rec.orded when earned (when they are measurable and available). 
Expenditures Expenditures are recognized in the accounting period in which the fund liability is incurred, if measurable, except expenditures for debt selvice, prepaid expenses, and other long-term obligations which are recognized when paid. Other Financing Sources (Uses) Transfers between funds that are not expected to be repaid (and any other financing source/use) are accounted for as other financing sources (uses). All proprietary funds are accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement focus and a determination of net income and capital maintenance. With this measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of these funds are included on the balance sheet. The proprietary 20 



 
TANGIPAtlOA PARISH COUNCIL Amite, Louisiana Notes to the Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 1996 funds use the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when earned, and expenses are recognized at the time liabilities are incurred. 

D. BUDGETS The council uses the following budget practices 1. Preliminary budgets for the ensuing year are prepared by the director of finance during Oclober of each year. During November, the council reviews the proposed budgets and makes changes as it deems appropriate. The availability of the proposed budgets are then advertised in the official journal. Prior to meeting in December, the council holds a public hearing on the proposed budgets in order to receive comments from residents. Changes are made to the proposed budgets based on the public hearings and the desires of the council as a whole. The budgets are then adopted during the council's meeting and notice is published in the official journal. 2. Unexpended appropriations lapse at year-end and must be reapproiated in the next year's budget to be expended. 3. The council adopted modified accrual basis budgets for the General Fund and all special Ievenue funds, except for the Criminal Court Fund for which there was no budget adopted. The council adopted accrual basis budgets for the proprietary funds. Budgetary control is at the functional level. Within functions, the parish president has the authority to make amendments as necessary. 4. During the year, the council receives quarterly budget comparison statements that are used to control the operations of the parish. The director of finance presents necessary budget amendments to the council during the year when, in his judgement, actual operations differ materially from those anticipated in the original budget, l)uring a regular meeting, the council reviews the proposed anaendments, makes changes as it feels necessary, and formally adopts the anaendments. The adoption ofarnendments is included in council minutes published in the official journal. The budget for 1996 was amended several times; the final amended budget of November 25, 1996, is reflected in the accompanying budget comparisons. 5. The following reconciles the revenues, expenditures, and other financing sources (uses) for the special reveJme funds as shown on Statement B with the amount shown on Statement C: 
Statement B Criminal Court Fund Statement C 

$ 12,778,354 $ 11,453,693 $ __. (_4.06,072) $ 12,372,282 $ 
21 

Othel Financing Sources (Uses)__ 372,413 26_195 11,071,106 $ 398.608 



 
TANGIPAHOA PARISII COUNCIL Amite, Louisiana Notes to the Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 1996 

E. ENCUMBRANCES The Tangipahoa Parish Council does not use encumbrance accounting. F. CASH, CASE[ EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS Cash includes amounts in interest-bearing demand deposits. Cash equivalents include amounts invested in the Louisiana Asset Management Pool. Under state law, the Tangipahoa Parish Council may deposit funds in demand deposits, interest-bearing demand deposits, money market accounts, or time deposits with state bartks organized under Louisiana law and national banks having their principal offices in Louisiana During the year ended December 31, 1996, the Tangipahoa Parish Council began investing funds with the Louisiana Asset Management Pool (LAMP). LAMP is a cash management pool initiated by the Louisiana State Treasurer's Office. Under state law, the Tangipahoa Parish Council may invest in United States bonds, treztsury notes, or cx~,rtificates. These are classified as investments if their original maturities exceed 90 days; however, if the original maturities are 90 days or less, they are classified as cash equivalents. Investments in the deferred compensation agency fund are reported at market value G. SHORT-TERM INTERFUND RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES 
I)ufing the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds for goods provided or services rendered. These receivables and payables are classified as due fi'om other funds or due to other funds on the balance sheet. Short-term interfund loans are classified as interfund receivables/payables 
1I. RESTRICTEI) ASSETS Restricted cash in Sewerage District No. 1 at December 31, 1996, consist of cash reserved for contingencies of $9,128. I. FIXED ASSETS Fixezl assets of governmental funds are recorded as expenditures at the time purchased or constructed, and the related assets are capitalized (reported) in the general fixed assets account group. Public domain or infrastructures are not capitalized. The cost of constructing and capping landfill cells and constructing a sludge facility at the landfill are not capitalized. No depreciation has been provided on general fixed assets. All fixed assets are valued at historical cost or estimated cost if historical cost is not available, except for donated assets which are stated at their market value on the date donated. Fixed assets used in the proprietary fund operations are included on the balance sheet of the funds net of accumulated depreciation. Interest cost incurred during construction are capitalized. Depreciation of all exhaustible fixed assets used by proprietary fund operations is charged as an expense against opeiations. 22 



 
TANGIPAIIOA PARISH COUNCIL Amite, Louisiana Notes to the Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 1996 Depreciation has been provided over the estimate, d useful lives of the fixed assets principally using the straight-line method and is computed using the fullowing useful lives: Internal Service Fund: Office Equipment Enterprise Fund: Sewer Treatment Plant and Lift Stations Sewer System Mains and Lines 

3 - 7 Years 20 - 40 Years 20 - 40 Years Depreciation of sewer utilities assets acquired by donation is treated as a reduction of contributed capital J. COMPENSATED ABSENCES The Tangipahoa Parish Council has the following policy relating to vacation and sick leave 
Parish Council employees are entitled to certain compensated absences based on their length of employment and overtime worked. Vested compensated absences are recorded as expenditures when the liability is incurred. Sick leave has not been accrued as the employee's right to sick leave does not vest. 
The cost of current leave privileges, computed iu accordance with GASB Codification Section C60, is recognized as a cun'ent-year expenditure in the governmental funds when leave is actually taken. "lhe cost of leave privileges not requiring current resources, if any, is recorded in the general long-term obligations account group, l~..ave privileges associated with employees of the proprietary funds are recorded as a fund liability and salary expense. K. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS Long-terna obligations expected to be financed from goverumental funds are reported in the general long- tern~ obligations account group. Expenditures for principal and interest payments for long-term obligations are recognized in the governmental funds when due. Long-term obligations expected to be financed flora proprietary fund operations are accounted for in those funds. The Tangipahoa Parish Council recognizes landfill closure and postclosure cost in accordance with GASB- 18. The measurement and recognition for landfill cost are reported using ~;overnmental fund and account group accounting and reporting. L. FUND EQUITY 
Contributed Capital Contributed capital is recorded in proprietary funds that have received capital grants or contributions from developers, customers, or other funds when such resources are restricted for the acquisition or 
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TANG1PAtlOA PARISH COUNCIL Amite, Louisiana Notes to the Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 1996 construction of capital assets. Contributed capital is amortized based on the depreciation recognized on that portion of the assets acquired or constructed from such resources. This depreciation is closed to the contributed capital account and is reflected as an adjustment to net income. Reserves Reserves represent those portions of fund equity not appropriable for expenditure or legally segregated for a specific future use. Designated Fund Balances Designated fund balances represent tentative plans for future use of financial resources M. INTERFUND TI~NSACTIONS Quasi-external transactions are accounted for as revenues, expenditures, or expenses. Transactions that constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures/expenses initially made from it that are properly applicable to aJaother fund are recorded as expenditures/expenses in the reimbursing fund and as reductions of expenditures/expenses in the fund that is reimbursed. All other interfund transactions, except quasi-external transactions and reimbursements, are repo:led as transfers. Nonrecurring or nonroutine permanent transfers of equity are repor~ted as residual equity transfers. All other interfund transfers are reported as operating transfers. N. AD VALOREM TAXES 

Ad valorem taxes and related state revenue sharing are recorded in the year the taxes are assessed. Ad valorem taxes are assessed on a calendar year basis, become due on November 15 of each year, and become delinquent after December 31. The taxes are generally collected in December of the current year and January and February of the ensuing year. O. SALES TAXES On October 3, 1992, the voters of Tangipahoa Parish approved a renewal of a one per cent parishwide general sales and use tax to be levied for the Tangipahoa Parish Council. The proceeds of the tax are dedicated on the basis of 75 per cent for roads m~d bridge maintenance and the remaining 25 per cent for general governmental purposes. The tax as renewed is effective through December 31, 2001. 
P. TOTAL COLUMNS ON COMBINED STATEMENTS Total columns on the combined statements are captioned Memorandum Only to indicate that they are presented only to facilitate financial analysis. Dala in these columns do not present financial position, 24 



 
TANGIPAHOA PARISH COUNCIL Amite, Louisiana Notes to the Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 1996 results of operations, or changes in financial position in conformity with generally accepted accounling principles. Neither is such data comparable to a consolidation. Interfund eliminations have not been made in the aggregation of this data, 

2. FUND DEFICITS The following individual fund have deficits in unreserved fund balance or retained earnings at Decembcr 31 1996: 
Enterprise Fund: Sewerage District Number 1 
3. EXPENDITURES/EXPENSES - ACTUAL AND BUDGET 

Deficit Amount 1.104 
The following individual funds have actual expenditures/expenses over budgeted expenditures/expenses for the year ended December 31, 1996: 
Special Revenue Fund: Road and Bridge Garbage District Number 1 Road Lighting District Number 3 Section 8 Voucher Rural Fire Protection District Number 2 Enterprise Fund: Sewer District Number 1 Total (Memorandum Only) 

Actual 
$ 
Unfavorable Variance 
122,250 75,063 340 6,956 47.841 250,633 279.915 29.282 

4. LEVIED TAXES The following is a summary of authorized and levied ad valorem taxes for the year 
Parishwide Taxes General Fund Special Revenue Fund: Health Unit Maintenance District Taxes: Special Revenue Fund 

Authorized Millage 

2S 

5.00 4.00 
Levied lvlillage 4.59 
4.06 
Expiration Year Continuous 
1996 



 
TANGIPAtIOA PARISH COUNCIL Amite, Louisiana Notes to the Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 1996 Road Lighting District Number 1 Road Lighting District Number 2 Road Lighting District Number 3 Road Lighting District Number 4 Garbage District Number 1 Fire Protection District Number 2 Debt Service Fund: Road District Number 101 Sub-Road District Number 1 of 101 General Sen,ice Sub-District Number 4A General Service Sub-District Number 5 General Ser~dce Sub-District Number 8 Recreation District Number 1 Recreation District Number 2 

2.00 15.00 15.00 15.00 10.00 10.00 Variable Variable Variable Variable Variable Variable Variable 

1.98 14.06 14.39 13.30 9.16 10.00 7.74 7.89 22.12 16.34 8.04 2.42 2.14 

2004 1996 2000 1997 2002 2005 2015 2015 2003 2003 2003 1997 1998 The differences between authorized and levied miUages are the result of the reassessment of taxable property within the parish required by Article 7, Section 23 of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974. 5. CASH AND CAStI EQUIVALENTS At December 31, 1996, the Tangipahoa Parish Council has cash and cash equivalents (book balances) totaling $6,314,812 as follows: Interest-Bearing Demand Deposits Investment in I,ouisiana Asset Management Pool Total s (505,880) 6.820.692 $ 6.314.812 The deposits are stated at cost, which approximates market. Under state law, these deposits (or the resuhing bank balances) must: be secured by federal deposit insurance or the pledge of securities owned by the fiscal agent bank. The market value of the pledged securities plus the federal deposit insurance must at all times equal the anaount on deposit with the fiscal agent. These securities are held in the name of the pledging fiscal agent bank in a holding or custodial bemk that is mutually acceptable to both parties. At December 31, 1996, the Tangipahoa Parish Council has $331,698 in deposits (collected bank balances) These deposits are secured from risk by $331,698 of federal deposit insurance. The investment in the Louisiana Asset Management Pool (LAMP) is stated at cost, which approximates market. The LAMP is a cooperative endeavor of local governmental entities created at the initiative of the Louisiana State Treasurer's Office for those entities to pool funds for investment. The LAMP is designed to comply with the restrictions on investment by municipalities, parishes, and other types of political subdivisions imposed under La. R.S. 33:2955. The investment advisor is restricted to 26 



 
TANGIPAHOA PARISH COUNCIL Amite, Louisiana Notes to the Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 1996 maintaining a dollar-weighted average portfolio maturity of not more than 90 days. LAMP is required to invest only in U.S. Government backed securities. 

6. RECEIVABLES The following is a summary of receivables at December 31, 1996 
Taxes: Ad Valorem Sales and Use State Revenue Sharing Other lntergovernmental Grants: Federal State Accounts Other Total 

General Fund 
311,872 172,035 62,420 57,816 3,428 152,681 14.899 

Special Revenue Fund 

40,960 232,915 26.805 775.151 

Debt Service Fund Proprietary Fund 
357,371 

39,056 357,371 $ 39.056 All receivables are reported at their gross value and, where appropriate, are reduced by the estimated portion that is expected to be uncollectible. 
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7. FIXED ASSETS 
TANGIPA~IOA PARISH COUNCIL Amite, Imuisiana Notes to lhe Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 1996 

The changes in general fixed assets follow: 
Council: Land Buildings Cooling Tower Machinery & Equipment Office Furniture Construction in Progress Subtotal Criminal Court: Furniture & Equipment Subtotal Recreation District Number 1: Buildings Equipment Subtotal Recreation District Number 2: Buildings Equipment Subtotal Rural Fire District Number 2 Equipment Subtotal Capital Projects Land Buildings 
Sewer Improvements - LCDBG Land Velma Sewer System Subtotal Total 

Balance 01/01/96 $ 1,972,028 $ 13,622,740 
4,071,400 222,023 245,010 20.133.201 
62.974 62.974 
501,900 38,529_ 540~29 
37,571 645.380 682.951 2,336fl67 2.336.767 

32,881 656.688 689.569 

314,993 1,045,986 
1.360.979 
3.394 3.394 

104~670 104 670 16,985 443,534 46~519 

Deletions (185,oo0) $ (299,632) (267,360) (1,000) __.~245,010) __(998,002) 

(501,900) (38,529) __(540,429) 
(37,571) ~..(645,380) _ (682,95J) 

(32,881) _(656,688) __(689,569) 

Balance 12/31/96 
1,787,028 13,323,108 314,993 4,850,026 221,023 20.496.178 
66368 66.368 

2.441.437 2.441.437 16,985 443.534 460.519 

2 8 



 
TANG1PAHOA PARISH COUNCIL Amite, Louisiana Notes to tire Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 1996 A summary of proprietary property, plant, and equipment follows 

Land Sewerage Collection System Furniture and Equipment Total Proprietary Property, Plant, and Equipment Accumulated Depreciation Net Proprietary Property, Plant, and Equipment 
8. PENSION PLAN 

Enterprise Fund Internal Sere,ice Fund $ 54,981 $ 2,519,283 
2,574,264 __ (385,850) $ 2,188,414 

121,150 121,150 (~,906_)_ $ 49,244 
Substantially all employees of the Tangipahoa Parish Council are members of the Parochial Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana (System), a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by a separate board of trustees. The System is composed of two distinct plans, Plan A and Plan B, with separate assets and benefit provisions. All employees of the Tangipahoa Parish Council are members of Plan A. All pem~anent employees working at least 28 hours per week who are paid wholly or in part from parish funds and all elected parish officials are eligible to participate in the System. Under' Plan A, employees who retire at or after age 60 with at least 10 years of creditable service, at or after age 55 with at least 25 years of creditable service, or at any age with at least 30 years of creditable service are entitled to a retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, equal to 3 percent of their final-average salary for each year of creditable service, ltowever, for those employees who were members of the supplemental plan only before January 1, 1980, the benefit is equal to one percent of final average salary plus $24 for each year of supplenaental-plan-only service eat ned before January 1, 1980, plus 3 percent of final-average salary for each year of service credited after the ievision date. Final-average salary is the employee's average salary over the 36 consecutive or joined months that produce the highest average. Employees who terminate with at least the amount of creditable service stated above, and do not withdraw their employee contributions, may retire at the ages specified above and receive the benefit accrued to their date of termination. The System also provides death and disability benefits. Benefits are established or amended by state statute. The System issues an annual publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for the System. That report may be obtained by writing to the Parochial Employees' Retirement System, Post Office Box 14619, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70898-4619, or by calling (504) 928-1361. Under Plan A, members are required by state statute to contribute 9.5 percent of their annual covered salary and the Tangipahoa Parish Council is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The current rate is 7.25 percent of annual covered payroll. Contributions to the System also include one-forth of one percent (except Orleans and East Baton Rouge Parishes) of the taxes shown to be collectible by the tax roils of each parish. These tax dollars are divided between Plan A and Plan B based proportionaUy on the salaries of the 29 



 
TANGIPAHOA PARISH COUNCIL Amite, Louisiana Notes to the Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 1996 active members of each plan. The contribution requirements of plan members and the Tangipahoa Parish Council are established and may be amended by state statute. As provided by Louisiana Revised Statute 11:103, the employer contributions are determined by actuarial valuation and are subject to change each year based on the results of the valuation for the prior fiscal year. The Tangipahoa Parish Council's contributions to the System under Plan A for the years ending December 31, 1996, 1995, and 1994, were $229,212, $227,089, and $204,353, respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year. 9. DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN The Tangipahoa Parish Council offers its employees two deferred compensation plans creaied in accordance with Internal Revenue Code 457. One plan with Public Employees Benefits Service Corporation is available to all council employees and permits them to defer a portion of their salaries until future years. No portion of this deferred compensation is paid by the council. The other plan, with State of Louisiana Defezxed Compensation Plan, is available only to those employees who are not members of the Parochial Employees Retirement System of Louisiana. This plan also permits eligible council employees to defer a portion of their salaries until future years. The council pays 7.5% of the eligible employees' salaries into this plan. 

The deferred compensation of both plans is not available to employees until termination, retirement, dcath, or unforeseeable emergency. All amounts of compensation deferred under the plans, all property and rights purchased with those anmunts, and all income attributable to those amounts, property, or rights are (until paid or made available to the employee or other beneficiary) solely the property and rights of the council (without being restricted to the provisions of benefits under the plans), subject only to the claims of the council's general creditors. Participants' rights under the plans are equal to those of general creditors of the council in an amount equal to the fair market value of the deferred account for each participant. Of the $3,436,433,143 in the Public Employees Benefits Service Corporation's plan at December 31, 1996, $46,567 was applicable to the council while the remaining $3,386,576, represents the assets of the other jurisdictions participating in the plan. Of the $207,574,053 in the State of Louisiana Deferred Compensation Plan at December 31, 1996, $405,387 was applicable to the council while the remaining $207,168,666 represents the assets of the other jurisdictions participation in the plan. 10. COMPENSATED ABSENCES At December 31, 1996, employees of the Tangipahoa Parish Council have accumulated and vested $77,165 of employee leave benefits, which was computed in accordance with GASB Codification Section C60. Of this amount, $14,160 is recorded as an obligation of the General Fund, and $51,174 is recorded as an obligation of the Special Revenue Funds. The leave liability for employees of the Enterprise Fund, in the amount of $880, and the Internal Service Fund, in the amount of $10,951, is accounted for within the funds. 
3 C3 



11. LEASES 
TANGIPAtIOA PARISH COUNCIL Amite, Louisiana Notes to the Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 1996 

The council records items under capital leases as assets and obligations in the accompanying financial statements. At December 31, 1996, the council has 3 capital leases in effect for equipment. The leases have an original recorded asset amount of $410,210. Lease obligations are retired fiom the Garbage District No. 1 Special Revenue Fun& The following is a summary of future minimum lease payments, and the present value of the net minimum lease payments as of Decernber 31, 1996: Fiscal Year 1997 Fiscal Year 1998 Total Future Minimum Lease Payments Amount Representing Interest Present Value of Net Minimum Lease Payments 
$ 101,265 31,063 132,328 (5,543) 126.785 The council has no material long-term, noncancellable operating lease commitments at December 31,199( 12. JUDGEMENT PAYABLE 

On April 12, 1993, an agreement was reached with the Tangipahoa Parish Library and Fire Protection District No. 2 regarding the payment of state revenue sharing funds withheld from them by the council in the years 1986-1988. The amount of $975,473, without past or future interest, is to be paid as follows The council will pay a minimum of $100,000 per year to Fire Protection District No. 2 and the Tangipahoa Parish Library Board of Control until the amount of $975,473 is paid in full. If more funds are available during any of these years, the council reserves the right to pay a higher figure at its discretion. When the $975,473 (plus interest in the event of default) is paid in full, the existing judgement against the council for this amount will be deemed fulfilled and cancelled at that time. Fire Protection District No. 2 shall be paid 63.8% of these funds. The District shall further allocate these funds to the various fire departments according to their regular contract percentage with Fire Protection District No. 2. Tangipahoa Parish Library Board of Control shall be paid 36.2% of these funds The annual re-payment anaount of $ 100,000 shall be made in four (4) equal installments payable on March 31 June 30, September 30, and December 31 of each year, beginning with March 31, 1993. If the council defaults on any installment, legal interest from December 8, 1987, forward will be reinstated and will be due on the remaining principal owed under this agreement. Default is defined as being more than 15 days late with any one payment. 33. 



 
TANGIPAHOA PARISH COUNCH~ Amite, Louisiana Notes to the Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 1996 The 1996 repayment of $100,000 was recognized as an expenditure of the General Fund which left a balance of $575,473 at December 31, 1996, which is reported as general long-term debt. 13. PARISH JAIL AGREEMENT Act 859 of the Regular Legislative Session of 1981 anthorized the Louisiana State Bond Commission to issue $6,750,000 of general obligations bonds and reimbursable general obligation bonds to plan, acquire, and construct a new parish jail in Tangipahoa Parish. The Tangipahoa Parish Council, in agreement with the Louisiana State Bond Conmaission, agreed to provide 30 per cent ($2, 025,000) of the bonded debt over a 20- year period at interest rates from 8.5 to 10.7 per cent. On May 1, 1994, the Tangipahoa Parish Sheriffs Office paid offthree of the four general obligation bonds for a total of $1,553,707. 

The remaining bond is Io be paid by the Sheriff's Office in annual installments 14. REVENUE BONDS PAYABLE - SEWERAGE DISTRICT NUMBER 1 
On January 6, 1993, Sewerage District No. 1 of the Parish of Tanglpahoa, State of Louisiana, entered into an agreement with U. S. Department of Agriculture, Farmers Home Administration (now known as Rural Economic And Community Development/Farm Service Agency) to finance the cost of constructing and acquiring improvements and extensions to its existing sewerage system through the issuance of sewer revenue bonds. The sewer revenue bonds were issued on March 3, 1993, as Bond No. R-1 in the amount of $733,000 and Bond No. R-2 in the amount of $67,000, and were sold to the United States of America, Farmers tlome Administration. As of December 31, 1996, the Sewerage District had drawn down $733,000 on Bond R-1 and $67,000 on Bond R-2, for a total of $800,000. The bonds bear interest at the rate of 5 5/8% per annum and are payable monthly over a forty (40) year period The monthly payment for Bond R-1 is $3,900 and for Bond R-2 is $356. The bonds are payable solely from revenues to be derived from the operation of the sewerage system and are secured by such revenues. 
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TANGIPAHOA PARISH COUNCIL Amite, Louisiana Notes to the Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 1996 The following is a surmalary of bond transactions of the Sewerage District No. 1 of the Parish of Tangipahoa, Louisiana for the year ended December 31, 1996" 

Bonds Payable, January 1, 1996 Bond Retirements/Adjustments Bonds Payable, December 31, 1996 
1993RECD $773,000 Revenue $ 729,804 $ (6,192) , $ 723,612 $ 

1993 RECD $67,000 Revenue Tolal 62,967 3,061 66.028 $ 792,771 (3,~3~ $ 789~640 
The Schedule above includes a correction by the lender (Rural Economic And Community Development) in the application of payments to the two outstanding bonds for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1995 Bonds Payable at December 31, 1996, are comprised of the following individual Issues 

Current Panount Long-Term Amount Total Princ)_I~l 1993 Revenue Bonds: $733,000 utility bonds sold to RECD; dated 03/(13/93; due in monthly installments of $3,900 through 02/03/33; interest at 5.625% $ 6,251 $ 717,361 $ 723,612 1993 Revenue Bonds: $67,000 utility bonds sold to RECD; dated 03/03/93; due in monthly installments of $356 through 02/03/33; interest at 5.625% $ 

33 

578 65,450 66,028 6.829 $ 782.811 789.640 



 
TANGIPAtIOA PARISH COUNCIL Amite, Louisiana Notes to the Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 1996 The arumal requirements to amortize all debt outstanding as of December 31, of $1,061,004 are as follows: 1993 RECD $773,000 Revenue 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 - 2006 2007 - 2011 2012-2016 2017-2021 2022-2026 2027-2031 2032-2033 

1996, includinginterest payments 
1993RECD $67,000 Revenue Total $ 46,795 $ 4,277 $ 51,072 46,795 4,277 51,072 46,795 4,277 51,072 46,795 4,277 51,072 46,795 4,277 51,072 233,974 21,386 255,360 233,974 21,386 255,360 233,974 21,386 255,360 233,974 21,386 255,360 233,974 21,386 255,360 233,974 21,386 255,360 58.490 4.634 63.124 $ 1.696.309 15. REVENUE BOND RESOLUTION COVENANTS $ 154,335 $ 1,850,644 

As of December 31, 1996, the Sewerage District No. 1 of the Parish of Tangipahoa, Louisiana, has two Rural Economic Community Development (RECD) Revenue Bonds. The total authorized issue of $800,000 consists of two bonds issued on March 3, 1993, of $733,000 and $67,000, both issued at an annual interest rate of 5.625%. The original bond resolution specifies that the bonds shall be secured and payable in principal and interest exclusively by a pledge of the income and revenues derived or to be derived from the operation of the system. Other specific legal requirements and bond restrictions are sununarized below: a) The issuer, the Sewerage District No. 1 of the Parish of Tangipahoa, Louisiana, covenants to fix, establish, and maintain such rates and collect such fees, rents, or other charges for the services and facilities of the System, and all parts thereof, and to revise the same from time to time whenever necess~y, to pay the reasonable and necessary expenses of operating and maintaining the system in each year, all reserves or sinking funds required, and all other obligations or indebtedness payable out of lhe revenues of the System, and which will provide revenues in each year, after paying all reasonable and necessary expenses of operating and maintaining the System, at least equal to 120% of the largest amount of principal and interest maturing on the bonds in any future fiscal year and on any parity bonds issued thereafter. 
For the fiscal year ending December 31, 1996, the bond debt coverage factor indicated net revenues (before interest expense and depreciation) were 202% of the required bond principal and interest payments, as compared to a ratio of 114% for the fiscal year ending December 31, 1995. The deficit in retained earnings is disclosed in Footnote 2 (Deficit-Retained Earnings), and Exhibit C. 34 
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TANGIPAHOA PARISH COUNCIL Amite, Louisiana Notes to tbe Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 1996 The establishment and maintenance of a "Sewer Bond and Interest Sinking Fund" (the Sinking Fund) sufficient in amount to pay promptly and fully the principal and interest on the bonds. The actual creation of a sinking fund was not required since the district pays required bond installments directly to Rural Economic and Community Development, on a monthly basis. The establishment of the "Sewer Revenue Bond Reserve Fund" (the Reserve Fund) by transferring from the Sewer Revenue Fund, the operating account of the district, monthly in advance on or before the 20~ of each month a sum at least equal to five per cent (5%) of the amount to be paid each month for bond principal and interest payments. The actual amount to be transferred for bonds outstanding at December 31, 1996, per the RECD Letter of Conditions, was a total of $212.80 per month. Deposit of funds shall continue until such time as there has been accumulated in the Reserve Fund an amount of money equal to the highest combined principal and interest requirements of any succeeding twelve month period. The money in the Reserve Fund is required to be retained solely for the purpose of paying the principal and interest on bonds payable, upon approval by the Rural Economic and Community Development office, for which there would otherwise be default. Deposits to the Reserve Fund were required to commence with the month following completion and acceptance of the improvements and extensions financed with the proceeds of the bonds. The system improvements financed with the 1993 Revenue Bonds became revenue producing on April 19, 1995. The district began making the required deposits in May, 1995. For the fiscal yeatr ending December 31, 1996, the district made the twelve required deposits of $212.80 per month, and also deposited a total of $1,702.40, for the period of May, 1995, through December, 1995, for a total balance of $4,256 at December 31, 1996. The establishment and maintenance of the "Sewer Depreciation and Contingency Fund" (the Contingency Fund) to care for depreciation, extensions, additions, improvements and replacements necessary to operate properly the System, by transferring from the Sewer Revenue Fund, the operating account of the district, monthly in advance on or before the 20th of each month the sum of $203 per month. Money in the Contingency Fund may also be used, upon approval, to pay the principal and interest on any bond for which there is not sufl]cient money in the Sinking Fund or the Reserve Fund. The system improvements financed with the 1993 Revenue Bonds became revenue producing on April 19, 1995, although the district began making deposits to this fund in January, 1995. For the fiscal year ending December 31, 1996, the district made the twelve required deposits of $203, and maintained a balance of $4,872 at fiscal year end. 
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TANGIPAHOA PARISH COUNCIL Amite, Louisiana Notes to tile Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 1996 e) The district, in the bond resolution dated January 6, 1993, also obligated itself to abide by the following 

8 
9 10 

covenants The district will shut off service if the delinquent charge, with interest and penalties accrued thereon, is not paid within thirty days from the date on which such charges became delinquent. A penalty of 10% will be charged oil all delinquent accounts, and interest of not less than 5% per annum will be charged on delinquent accounts after 10 days from tile date of delinquency. The district will charge a residential rate of $16.50 per month, and a commercial rate of $30 00 per month. The district agrees to maintain the System in first class repair and working order and condition. The district will carry full insurance coverage on the System in the manner required by the Government, with a company licensed to do business under the laws of Louisiana. The district will maintain separate and c~orrect records and accounts, and will have the books audited no later than three months after the end of the fiscal year. The district will not sell, lease or in an), manner dispose of the System or any substantial part thereof, provided the district may dispose of property that in its judgement is worn-out, unserviceable, unsuitable, or unnecessary ira the operation of the System. The district will not, except as provided by this bond resolution, voluntarily create or cause to be created any debt, lien pledge, mortgage, assignment, or any other charges having priority or parity with the liens of the Bonds upon the income and revenues of the System pledged as security therefor. That, to the extent permitted by law, the district will not grant a franchise to any utility for operation within the boundaries of the district. In operation of the System, the district will require all officers and employees in a position of authority or in possession of money derived from operations of the System to be covered by a blanket fidelity bond or faithful performance bond. That the district will take all action necessal3, to require connection to its sewer system to the extent permitted by law. In relation to items (1) and (2) above, concerning the disconnect of accounts, and the charges to delinquent accounts, the Tangipahoa Parish Council approved an ordinance on April 8, 1996, requiring water companies in the naral and unincorporated portions of Tangipahoa Parish to enter into contracts with Sewerage District No. I of the Parish of Tangipahoa, Louisiana to collect sewerage billings for the sewerage district The ordinance states that the water company shall provide that any person failing to timely pay the entire billing of sewerage charges within the prescribed time period for utility payment of said water company, then in that event the customer's water service shall be disconnected until aU past due sewerage charges and reconnect charges for sewerage billings are paid in full. The said water company shall also be authorized to collect a penalty for reconnect charges associated with its disconnection of the said customer from water service due to the customer's failure to pay sewerage charges. 
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TANGIPAHOA PARISH COUNCIL Amite, I~uisiana Notes to the Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 1996 The current rate schedule (Item 3), the schedule of insurance coverages (Item # 5) and fidelity bond coverages (Item 10) are disclosed in the "Supplemental Information" schedules included as a part of this audit report. Non-compliance was not noted in the review of the remaining bond covenants. 

16. CHANGES IN GENERAL LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS The following is a summary of the long-term obligation transactions for the year ended December 31, 1996 

General Obligation Bonds Capital Leases Judgements Payable Estimated Liability for Landfill Closure/Postclosure Care Cost 

Long-Term Obligations Payable 01/01/96 Additions 
Long-Term Obligations Payable Deletions 12/31/96 1,072,861 $ 700,000 $ (229,102) $ 1,543,759 345,579 (218,704) 126,875 675,473 (100,000) 575,473 

1.080,960 3,222,760 $ 3,174~873 $ 3,922~760 General obligation bonds are comprised of the following individual issues 
4.303.720 

$60,000 - issue of 1982 to construct a new parish jail facility, due in annual installments of $9,796 through December 1, 2002, with interest of 10.7 percent. Debt retilement payments are made by the Tangipahoa Parish Sheriffs Office. $ 33,759 $350,000 issue of 1996 to open, construct, mad improve public roads, highways, and bridges within District No. 101, due in annual installments of $10,000 to $30,000 through March 1, 2016, with interest at 5.1 to 10.0 percent. Debt retirement payments are made from the Road District No. 101 Debt Service Fund. 350,000 $350,000 issue of 1996 to open, construct, and improve public roads, highways, and bridges within Sub-Road District No. 1 of District No. 101, due in annual installments of $10,000 to $30,000 through March 1, 2016, with interest at 5.1 to 10.0 percent. Debt retirement payments are made from the Sub-Road District No. 1 of Road District No. 101 Debt Service Fund. $200,000 issue of 1984 to construct and improve tmblic roads, highways, and bridges within Sub-District No. 4A, due in annual installments of $5,000 to $20,000 through June 1, 2004, with interest ranging from 9.7 to 11.0 per cent. Debt retirement payments are made from the General Service Sub-District No. 4A Debt Service Fund. 
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350,000 
85,000 



 
TANGIPAY[OA PARISH COUNCIL Amite, Louisiana Notes to tile Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 1996 $900,000 issue of 1984 to construct, maintain, and improve public roads, highways, and bridges within Sub-District No. 5, due in annual installments of $5,000 to $110,000 through June 1, 2004, with interest ranging from 9.7 to 11.0 per cent. Debt retirement payments are made from the General SeiMce Sub-District No. 5 Debt Service Fund. 325,000 $900,000 issue of 1984 to construct maintain, and improve public roads, highways, and bridges within Sub-District No. 8, due in annual installments of $5,000 to $110,000 through June 1, 2004, with interest ranging from 9.7 to 11.0 per cent. Debt retirement payments are made from the General SeJMce Sub-District No. 8 Debt Service Fund. 325,000 $505,000 issue of 1978 to acquire land, buildings, and equipment within Recreation District No. l, due in annual installments of $15.000 to $50,000 through June 15, 1998, with interest ranging from 5.0 to 6.75 per cent. Debt retirement payments are made from the Recreation District No. 1 Debt Service Fund. 25,000 $570,000 issue of 1980 to acquire land, buildings, and equipment within Recreation District No. 2, due in annual installments of $15.000 to $70,000 through January 15, 1999, with interest ranging from 5.4 to 6.0 per cent. Debt retirement payments are made from the Recreation District No. 2 Debt Service Fund. 50,000 Total General Obligation Bonds $ 1.543.759 At December 31, 1996, the council has accumulated $409,464 in debt service funds for future debt requirements. This equals the debt service reserved fund balances of $409,464. The annual requiremcnts to amortize all obligations outstanding at December 31, 1996, including interest of $714,220 for bonded debt and $5,453 for capital leases, are as follows: 

1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002-2006 2007-2011 2012-2016 

General Obligation Bonds Capital Leases Judgements Payable $ 374,472 $ 101,265 $ 100,000 363,506 31,063 100,000 346,700 100,000 90,933 100,000 87,294 100,000 364,681 75,473 312,343 318.050 $ 2,257,97.9..9 $ 132,328 $ 575.473 

Tota 

General obligation bonds of $1,543,759 are payable fiom an annual ad valorem tax levy. In accordance with Louisiana Revised Statute 36:562, the council is legally restricted from incurring long-term bonded debt in 38 



 
TANGIPAtIOA PARISH COUNCIL Amite, Louisiana Notes to the Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 1996 excess of I0 per cent of the assessed value of taxable property in the parish. At December 31, 1996, lhe statutory limit is $15,974,982. LANDFILL CLOSURE AND POSTCLOSURE COSTS State and federal laws and regulations require the Tangipahoa Parish Council to place a final cover on its landfill site when it stops accepting waste and to perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the landfill site for thirty years after closure. The landfill activilies are accounted for in a governmental fund (special revenue fund--Garbage District No. 1). GASB-18 requires thai: a portion of the estimated total current cost of closure and postclosure care be recognized each year using the estimated life of the landfill and the usage of the landfill for a particular period. In addition to expenditures related to current activities of the landfill, an expenditure provision and ;elated liability are being recognized based on the future closure and postclosure costs that will be incurred near or after the date the landfill no longer accepts waste. 

However, due to the measurement focus and basis of accounting of a govermnental fund, the annual cost recognition related to estimated closure and postclosure care costs generally will not affect a governmc.ntal's entity's activity statement. The estimated liability as of December 31, 1996, is recorded in the general long- lerm debt account group as an estimated liability for landfill closure and postclosure costs. 
The recognition of these landfill closure and postclosure care costs is based on the amount of the landfill used during the year. For the fiscal year ending December 31, 1995, an estimated liability of $1,080,960 was reported for landfill closure and postclosure care costs, based on 80% usage (filled) of permitted landfill capacity. Also, it was estimated that an additional $270,240 would be recognized as closure and postclosure care expenses between the date of the balance sheet and the date that the landfill was expected to be filled to capacity (1997). These amounts are revised for the fiscal year ending December 31, 1996, based on permilting of an additional two cells revising to the year 2000 the date the landfill will be filled to capacity, and revision of engineering estimates for closure and postclosure care costs. It should be noted that future estimates of closure and postclosure care costs will be dependent on permitting of additional cells, and revised engineering estimates. Based on revised estimates of closure and postclosure care costs, for the fiscal year ending Decemher 31, 1996, the estimated liability for landfill closure and postclosure costs, based on 78% usage (filled), is increased to a total of $4,303,720. It is estimated that an additional $1,213,870 will be recognized as closure and postclosure care expenses between the date of the balance sheet and the date the landfill is expected to be filled to capacity (2000). The estimated total cost of the landfill closure and postclosure care ($5,517,590) is based on the amount that would be paid if all equipment, facilities, and services required to close, monitor, and maintain the landfill were acquired as of December 31, 1996. However, the actual cost of closure and postclosure care may be higher due to inflation, changes in technology, or changes in landfill laws and regulations. 
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TANGIPAHOA PARISH COUNCIL Amite, Louisiana Notes to the Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 1996 The Tangipahoa Parish Council anticipates that tile liability for closure and postclosure costs will be funded on a "pay-as-you go basis", if allowable. Per Louisiana Revised Statutes 30:2154, the provision was nullified that requires local governments operating landfills to provide insurance or other proof of financial responsibility, as operators of solid waste processing or disposal facilities. GASB-18 requires that the current annual costs related to landfill closure and postclosure care for the special revenue fund--Garbage District No. 1, be disclosed. However, for the fiscal year ending December 31, 1996, the engineering estimate of landfill closure and postclosure costs were revised, and the expected life of the landfill revised based on permitting of additional cells. As of December 31, 1996, total estimated current annual costs are revised to $1,185,364, with a total of $924,584 that would be recognized as of December 31, 1996. The balance of current costs of $260,780 will be recognized as the landfill site is closed. 

CHANGES IN AGENCY FUNDS A summary of changes in assets and liabilities follows 
Balance 01/01/96 Assets: Deposits with Public Employees Benefits Service Colporation $ Deposits with State of Louisiana Deferred Compensation Plan 

Deletions Balance 12/31/96 
48,583 $ 3,984 $ (6,000) $ 46,567 
283,759 121,628 Total Assets $ 332,342 $ 125,612 $ 

Liabilities: Due to Plan Participants Total Liabilities $ $ 

405,387 451.954 
332,342 125,612 $ (6,000) $ 451,954 332,342 $ 125.612 $ 
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TANGIPAHOA PARISH COUNCIL Amite, Louisiana Notes to the Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 1996 19. CRIMINAL COURT FUND Louisiana Revised Statute 15:571.11 requires that one-half of any balance remaining in the criminal court fund at year end be transfened to the parish General Fund. The following details the amount due at December 31, 1996: 

Balance Due at January 1, 1996 Amount Due for 1996 Total Amount Remitted During 1996 Balance Due at December 31, 1996 
20. DUE TO/FROM OTHER FUNDS 

28,907 26.196 55,103 (28~907D_ 26.196 
As of December 31, 1996, interfund receivables and payables that resulted from various interfund transactions were as follows: Receivable Fund General Fund General Fund General Fund Garbage District Number 1 

Payable Fund Criminal Court Fund Booker II Sewer Fund l:~ooker II Water Fund Road and Bridge Fund 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL PAYABLE 

Anqotlfil $ 26,196 17,003 100 1.450 
The following is a summary of the intergovernmental payable due other governments at December 3t, 1996 

Due to State of Louisiana Due to St. Bernard Parish Due to Lafourche Parish Due ot Tangipahoa Parish Sheriff's Office 
$ 
General Fund 1,656 
75,000 
$ 
Special Revenue Fund Total 
1,698 1,244 

$ 76~656 $ 2~942 
4 :k 

1,656 1698 1244 75,000 79.598 



 
TANGIPAHOA PARISH COUNCIL Amite, Louisiana Notes to the Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 1996 22. LITIGATION AND CLAIMS At December 31, 1996, the council is involved in litigalion or is aware of 35 claims totaling an undetel mined amount. Since all of the claims are covered by insurance, future revenues, and fund surpluses, no amount has been recorded as a liability of the General Fund or General Long-term Liability. 

All of the litigation cost incurred during the year has been recorded as a current-year expenditure in the General Fund. 23. FOOD STAMP PROGRAM The Food Stamp Program is operated by the council under an agreement with the Louisiana Department of Social Services. Under this program, the council is responsible for the issuance of food stamps to eligible participants in the parish. The value of food stamps on hand, received, and issued is not recorded in the accompanying statements. Activity for the year follows: Balance at January 1, 1996 1996 Receipts 1996 Disbursements Mutilated Coupons Balance at December 31, 1996 24. AMOUNT PAID PARISH PRESIDENT AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 

$ 4,175,758 15,542,000 (15,532,366) $ 4.185.296 
Compensation paid to the Parish President and Council members for the year ending December 31, 1996, is as follows: 
Gordon Burgess, President Ronald Bankston Carlo Bruno Guy Buckley Jr. Bobby Cortez Travis Edwards William Fleet George Holton John Jarrell Michael Petitto Howard Ridgel Total Compensation 
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TANGIPAHOA PARISH COUNCIL Amite, Louisiana Notes to the Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 1996 25. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS On March 10, 1997, the Tangipahoa Parish Coturcil approved a resolution authorizing the sale of bonds, not to exceed one million dollars, for Ponchatoula Area Recreation District No. 1. The bonds are to be repaid from a 10 mill property tax authorized by voters of the recreation district on July 20, 1996. On March 24, 1997, the Tangipahoa Parish Cotmcil approved award of the FY-1995 Louisiana Community Development Block Grant (LCDBG) construction contracts for the project entitled "Water System Improvements-Booker Road Project II". Contract tot~ds awarded to low bidders were $139,570 for thc new water well, $209,275 for water system improvements, and $159,170 for ground storage and pressule tank. On March 24, 1997, the Tangipahoa Parish Council approved the low bid of $866,200, for construction of the Courthouse Annex, to house facilities of the Tangipahoa Parish Council. On April 28, 1997, the Tangipahoa Parish Council awarded the construction contract for the project cntitled "FY-1995 LCDBG Sewer System Improvements-Woodland Park Booker II", to the low bidder at a total bid of $641,500. 26. PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS Prior period adjustments, totaling ($50,000), and ($51,931), were made to correct the begilming unrcscrvcd fund balance of the General Fund. The first correction of ($50,000) corrects for a receivable rccordcd at December 31, 1995, when the funds were not received until November, 1996. The second entry of ($51,931) corrects for expenditures for prisoner expenses recorded in the current fiscal year that should have been recorded at December 31, 1995, as a payable. The corrections to the beginning unreserved fund balance account for the General Fund, are as follows: 
12/31/95 

12/31/95 

Unreserved Fund Balance (Before Prior Period Adjustment) Correction of Errors: Correction to Receivable Correction to Payable Unreserved Fund Balance (After Prior Period Adjustment) 
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$ 1,699,404 
(50,000) (51,931) $ 1,597,473 



SUPPLEMENTAL ]NFOILMATION SCHEDULES 
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TANGIPAItOA PARISH COUNCIL Amite, Louisiana SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION SCHEDULES As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 1996 

ROAD AND BRIDGE FUNDS The Road and Bridge Funds account for the construction of new roads and bridges and the maintenance of the existing roads and roadsides areas within the respective road districts. Major sources of revenues are ad valorem taxes, 75% sales tax, and appropriations from the State of Louisiana Parish Transportation Fund 
ROAD MGHTING DISTRICT FUNDS 
The Road Lighting District Funds account for the costs of lighting streets and roads within the respective districts. The major source of revenue is ad valorem taxes. GARBAGE DISTRICT NO. 1 FUND The Garbage District No. 1 Fund accounts for the cost of operating the parish landfill. Major sourcc.s of revenue are ad valorem taxes and sanitation landfill user fees. 
RURAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT NO. 2 FUND The Rural Fire Protection District No. 2 Fund accounts for the receipt of ad valorem taxes, state Jevenue sharing, and the two percent: fire insurance rebate monies and the appropriation of these funds to the various fire departments in the district based on percentage of rural population they serve. HEALTH UNIT FUND The Health Unit Fund a(x:ounts for the parish's portion of the cost of acquiring and maintaining the health units in the parish. The major source of revenue is ad valorem taxes. WITNESS FEES FUND The Witness Fees Fund accounts for the fees paid to witnesses in district court and the Seventh Ward Court The major source of revenue is court fines. 
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TANG]PAHOA PARISH COUNCIL Amite, l,ouisiana SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION SCHEDULES (Continued) As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 1996 

CRIMINAL COURT FUND SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS The Twenty-First Judicial District Criminal Court Fund is established under Section 571.11 of Title 15 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, which provides that fines and forfeitures imposed by the district corals and district attorney conviction fees in criminal cases are to be transferred to the parish treasurer and deposited into a special Criminal Court Fund to be used for the expenses of the criminal court of the parish. Expenditt~res are made from the fund on motion of the district attorney and approval of the district judges. The stalute also requires that one-half of the fund balance remaining in the Criminal Court Fund at December 31 of each year be transferred to the parish General Fund. STATE AND FEDERAL FUNDS STATE-LOCAL GOVERNMENT ASSISTANCE FUND The State-Local Government Assistance Fund accounts for the funds received from the State ofl,ouisiana Mineral Enhancement Fund and their ultimate disbursements. SECTION 8 HOUSING AND SECTION 8 VOUCHER FUNDS The Section 8 Housing and Section 8 Voucher Funds account for grants received from the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development for housing assistance programs for low-income persons. ANIMAL SHELTER FUND 
The Animal Shelter Fund accounts for transfers from the parish to construct a parish animal shelter 
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TANG~PAHOA PARISH COUNCIl. Amite, Louisiana SPECIAl, RE:VENUE - ROAD AND BRID~E FUNDS COMBINING BALANCE SHEET December 31, 1996 

LIABILITIES Account~: payab]e Accrued Expenses Due to other funds 
FUND EQI]]TY Unresei~ed-undesJgnated 

ROAD AND BRIDGE COgFRACT 
$ 825,905 $ 1,317,956 $ 2,143,860 351,960 206.333 560.293 
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TANGIP/~40A PARISH COUNCIL Amlte, Louisiana SPECIAL REV~]NUE - ROAD AND BRIDGE FUNDS COMBINING SCHEDDLE OF REVENnJES, EXPENDITURES, AND C}L~NGES IN FD]qD BA~CES For The Twelve Months Ended Decenfioer 31. 1996 

transportation funds 

ROAD A~9 RRIDG~ 
ROAD AND BRIDGE COAVfRACT 
6,171,459 687,044 113,990 6,727 

EXPENDITURES Public Works Debt Service: Principal Interest and agent fees 5,307 3.220 0 0 5,307 1.220 

Sale of fixed assets Operating transfers in 12],537 689 0 45. 001 121,537 45.690 
Excess Of Revenues and Other Sources Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Uses Fund Balances at BegZnning of Year 
Fund Balances at End of Year 
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SCHEDULE 4 



ASSETS Cash an6 cash Receivables 
LIABILITIES Accounts payable 
FUND EQDITY Unreserved-undesignated Total Fund Equity 

TANGIPA~0A PARISH COUNCIL Amlt e, Louisiana SPECIAL REVENUE - ROAD LIGHTING DISTRICT FUNDS COMBINING BALANC~" SHEET December 31, 1996 
$ 
$ 
2,384 $ 2.58*; 29~428 $ ]4.121 2,892 $ 3.583 

NO~ 4 
44,650 $ 11,506 79,354 31,797 

$ 109 $ 503 $ 431 $ 

Total LJahil~tJes and Fund Equity $ 

109 L505 

52 

SCHEDULE 5 



REVENUES Taxes: Ad valorem State revenue Interest 
EXPENDITURES Public Works 

TANGIPAHOA ~ISH COUNCIL Amlte, J~ulsiana SPECIAL REVENUE - ROAD LIGHTING DISTRICT FI/NDS C~MBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENLq!S, EXPENDII~JRES, CHANGES IN FUND E~LANCES For Thc ~clvc Months ~Inded |)~ccrabcr 32, 1996 

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures Fund Balances at BegJnnin!~ of Year 

SCHEDULE 6 

NO. 2 NO. 3 

3.844 7.159 3.759 3,759 9.066 
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TANOIPAHOA PARISH COUNCIL Amite, l~u islana SPECIAL REVENUE - STATE AND FEDERAL FUNDS COMBINING SCHEDbq~E OF REVENL~:S, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES For The Twelve Months Ended December 31, 1996 

REVENUES Intergovernmental revenues: Federal funds: Federal grants Fees, charges, and commissions for services Interest 
EXPENDITURES General Government: Finance and Administrative Public S~ fety Health and welfare 
Excess of Revenues Over {Under) Expenditures 
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (IJSE~ Operating transfers in Operating transfers out Total Other Financing Sources (uses 
Excess of Revenues and Other Sources Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Uses Fund Balances at BegJnnlnG of Year 

S~ATE-I,OCAL GOVERNMENT SECTION 8 ASSISTI~CE HOUSING VOUCHER 

SCHEDULE 8 

ANIMAL SHELTER 

110 0 0 

0 0 0 
i05,000 240.844 105,0( 240.844 
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COURTHOUSE FUND 

TANGIPAHOA PARISH COUNCIL Amite, Louisiana SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION SCHEDULES As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 1996 
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 

The Courthouse Fund accumulates monies to pay a $2,000,000 bond issue dated October 15, 1965 The bonds were issued to construct a new courthouse in the parish. Financing is provided by an annual property tax and interest earned on deposits. These bonds were paid in full in 1995. ROAD DISTRICT NO. 101 FUND 

SUB-ROAD DISTRICT NO. 1 OF ROAD DISTRICT NO. 101 FUND 

ROAD DISTRICT NO. 202 FUND The Road District No. 202 Fund accumulates monies to pay the January 15, 1965, bond issue of $56,000. The bonds were issued to open., construct, and improve public roads, highways, and bridges in the district. Financing is provided by an annual property tax and interest earned on deposits. 
SUB-ROAD DISTRICT NO. 1 OF ROAD DISTRICT NO. 202 FUND 

ROAD DISTRICT NO. 707 FUND 
The Road District No. 707 Fund accumulates monies to pay a bond issue dated January 15, 1965, of $650,000. The bonds were issued to open, construct, and improve public roads, highways, and bridges within the district. Financing is provided by an annual property tax and interest earned on deposits. 56 



 
TANGIPAHOA PARISH COUNCIL Anfite, Louisiana SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION SCHEDULES (Continued) As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 1996 DEBT SERVICE FUNDS SUB-ROAD DISTRICT NO. 1 OF ROAD DISTR/C'F NO. 808 FUND All bonds of this fund were redeemed prior to 1994 GENERAL SERVICE SUB-DISTRICT NO. 4A FUND 

GENERAL SERVICE SUB-I)ISTRICT NO. 5 FUND 

GENERAL SERVICE SUB-DISTRICT NO. 8 FUND 

RECREATION DISTRICT NO. 1 FUND 

RECREATION DISTRICT NO. 2 FUND 

5'7 



ASSETS Cash and cash Receivables 
I,IAB]LJT]ES Accounts payable 
FUND EQUITY Reserved for: Debt service Total Fund Equity 

TANGIPAHOA PARISH COUNCIl, Amite, Louisiana DEBT SERVICE FUNDS CO~INING BALANCE SHEET December 31. 1996 

Total Liabilities and Fund Equity $ 

ROAD DISTRICT 
6,307 $ 65,107 
GEN}:RAL SERVICE RECREATION DISTRICTS DISTRICTS T~QTAL 
49,536 $ 238,400 9,321 $ 53.864 65,564 357.371 

2,594 9,629 1.248 
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SCHEDULE 9 



REVENUES Taxes: Ad valocem Interest Total Revenues EXPENDITURES General Government: Finance and Administrative Debt Se~~ice: Principal Interest and agent fees 

TANGIPAHOA PARISH COUNCIL Amlte, Louisiana DEBT SERVICE FinDS COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENi~S, EXPENDITJRES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES For The Twelve Months ~nded December 3~. 1996 

Excess o[ Revenues Over (Under) ExpendituYes 
Continued on the following page OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES $ 

GENERAL ROAD SERVICE RECREATION COURTHODSE DISTRICTS DISTRICTS DISTRICTS 

0 $ ]] .489} 

69,778 $ 3.259 254,647 $ 7.664 33,410 $ 1.904 

SCHEDULE 10 

358,0~4 13.4;6 

225,0( 92.5~9 

740 $ 45.690) 
Excess of Revenues and Other Sources Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Uses Fund Balances at BegSnning of Year 
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o $ 0 



 
TANGIFA/40A PARISH COUNCIL ;unite, Louisiana DEBT SERVICE - ROAD DISTRICT FUNDS COMBINING BALANCE SHEET December 31. 1996 

ASSETS Cash and cash equivalents $ Receivables 
LIAB]LITJES Accounts payable 
FUND EQUITY Reserved for: Debt service Total Fund Eq,lity 

$ 
3,372 $ 32,564 3,335 $ 32,543 6.707 65.~07 

1,297 1,297 2,594 

34.640 69.220 69,220 
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SCHEDULE 11 



REVENUES Taxes: Ad valorem Interest 
.EXPENDITURES General Government : Finance and Administrative Debt Sel~/ice : Princip~l Interest and agent fees 

TANGIPAHOA PARISH COUNCIL Amite, I~,u~slana DEBT SERVICE - RO;~ DISTRICq' FUNDS COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FOND BALANCES FOr The Twelve Months Ended December 31, 1996 
SCHEI)ULE 12 

NO. ]01 NO. ]01-i NO. 202 NO. 202-i NO. 707 NO. 808-I 
34,880 $ 84,897 $ 242 187 35,122 85,084 

Excess of Revenues Over (under) Expenditures 
OTHER FII~ANCING SOURCES (USES Proceeds from bond sales Operatin!~ transfers out Total Other Financing Sources (Uses 
Excess of Revenues and Other Sources Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Uses 
Fund Balances at End of Year 

370 0 

5,000 687 7,693 

370 0 

85 0 

0 
0 
0 31 

8 $ 0 c) 

0 

0 $ 2.830 2.830 
57 0 0 57 

0 45.001 
31 31 31 31 

6] 

0 627 627 
627 627 



 
TANGIPAHOA pARISH COUNCIL Amite, Louisiana DEBT SERVICE - GENERAL SERVICE DISTRICT FUNDS COMBINING BALANCE SHEET December 31, 1996 

ASSETS Cash and cash equivalents Receivab]es 
LIABIbIT][ES Accounts payable 
FUND }~QUZTY Reserved for: Debt service 

NO. 4A NO~5 NO. 8 
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TOTAL 
49,536 238.400 

SCHEDULE 13 



 
TANGIPAHOA PARISH COUNCIl, ~nit e, Louisiana DEBT SERVICE - GENERAL SERVICE DISTRICT FUNDS COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE:S For The Twelve Months Ended Decemb6r 31. 1996 

EXPENDITURES General Government: Finance and Administrative Debt Ser~,iee : Pri ncipal Interest and agent fees 

NO. 4A NO. 5 NO. 6 TOTAL 
$ 31,478 $ 116,195 $ 106,974 $ 254,647 684 3,659 3,321 7,664 

4.772 
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SCHEDULE 14 



 
TANGIPAHOA PARISH COUNCIL Amite, Louisiana DEBT SERV]CE- RECREATION DISTRICT FUNDS CO~]NINS BALANCE SHEET December 31, 1996 

ASSETS Cash and cash equivalents Recelvab~Les 
LIABILIT[[ES Accounts payable 
FUND EQUITY Reserved for: Debt ~e~ice 

5.607 $ 38.279 
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SCHEI)ULE ] 5 



REVENUES Taxes: Ad valorem Interest 

TANGIPAHOA PARISH COUNCIL Amite, Louisiana DEBT SERVICE - RECREATION DISTRICT FUN)S COMBININS SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITL~ES, AND C}IANGES IN FUND BALANCES For The Twelve Months Ended December 31. :~996 

EXPENDITURES General Government: Finance and AdminiE:trative Debt Service: Principal Interest and agent fees 
Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 

$ 
NO. ] NO. 2 TOTAL 
16,808 $ 470 16,602 $ 1,434 33,41G 1.904 

1,955 40,000 5. ")44 
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SCIIEDULE 16 



Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor Proaram Titte United States Department of Agriculture Passed through the State Department of Health and Human Resources: Office of Family Security - Food Stamp Program 
Department of Housing and Urban Development: Section 8 E~istin9 Housing Program Section 8 Housing Voucher Program 
United States Department of Housing and Urban Development Passed through State Division of Admin, LCDBG Contract # 101 6071 (Booker II Sewer) LCDBG Contract # 101 6072 (Booker II Water) 

TANGIPAHOA PARISH COUNCIL Amite. Louisiana Schedule of Federal Financial Assistance For the Year Ended December 31. 1995 
Federal CFDA Number 

Cash/ Accrued Revenue at December 31 1995 
10.551 $ 4,175,758 
14.156 14.177 

14.219 
14.219 

Department of Federal Emergency Management Agency: Passed through Louisiana Office of Military Affairs Emergency Management Assistance- Civil Defense 83.503 
Total Federal Financial Assistance 

25,088 15.479 40.567 

$ 4,216,325 

Schedule 17 
Casht Receipts A'ccrued or Re~,enue at Revenue Disburs/ December 31 Recocdnized . Expend. 199~; 

$ 15,542,~____ $ 
403,742 171.6B0 575.422 

15.532.462 
387,073 ... 164,241I 551.314 

$ ___4,1 8~!,2.96 
41 757 ___ 22_ 918 

41.452 39.112 2340 
54.265 95.717 

11.302 

. 54,265 __~ 93.377 

11.302 
Note 1: The Schedule of Federal Assistance presented above is a surnmary of the cash ac~vity of the Council's federal award programs, and does not present transactions that would be included in the financial statements of the Council, based on the accrual basis. The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements. 
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TANGIPAHOA PARISH COUNCIL Summary Schedule of t'rior Audit Findings For the Year Ended December 31, 1995 
Reference Numbers: Exhibit 0, Item 1-4 Fiscal Year Finding Initially Occurred: 12/31/95 Description of Findings 

SCHEDULE 18 

1. A Caterpillar, (Tag # 10209) was on the listing but could not be located, and the title for a 1995 Ford 12 yard dump h'uck S/N 1FDYNSEZSVA 26092 could not be located. 2. Details of fire departments' listings of property and equipment do not agree with Rural Fire Protection District No. 2's computer listing. 3. Date of acquisition on general fixed asset listing defaults to 12/31/94 for many assets acquired prior to that date. 4. General fixed a,';set listing was not reconeilezt to the books at 12/31/95. Correction Action Taken: Partially Partial Correctiw~. Action Taken Management of the Tangipahoa Parish Council reviewed existing procedures for accounting and record- keeping for fixed assets. In this process, assets were inventoried and traced bad< to the fixed asset listing Subsidiary listings of the fire departments were recunciled to the Rural Fire Protection District No. 2's computer listing. To the extent possible, acquisition dates were checked for older assets and corrected as necessary. Additional Explauation: Correction action taken is listed as partial since expenditures recorded in the monthly general ledgers of the Parish Council are not reconciled monthly to the fixed asset additions list. Othe:r exceptions for fixed asset lecord-kecpiug are noted in the Corrective Action Plan for Current Year Audit Findings, following this schedule. Reference Numbers: Exhibit P, Items 1A- 1D Fiscal Year Finding Initially Occurred: 12/31/95 Description of Findings 1A. When purchasing some equipment, the council was subtracting a five-year buyback amount from the bid price received to arrive at the lowest price. This was in violation of the requirement that the bid price be a firm figure. lB. The council paid for a telephone lease-purchase made by the Clerk of Court. This purchase exceeded $10,000, but was not bid. 1C. The comacil purchase, d mats for the landfill for $9,945 without obtaining three quotes. 1D. The council camstructed a sludge treatment facility at the landfill with its own employees and equipment The project exceeded the maximum amount of $50,000, and was a violation of LSAALS. 38:2212, since the project was not bid. 
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t'age 2 Correction Action Taken: partially Partial Corrective Action Taken: When accepting bids, the buy-back amount is now a fixed amount as part of the contract, and will not vary in amount at the time of buy-back. Management also responded to the findings and indicated that all larger bid solicitations will be centralized through the Council office, and documentation will be maintained to show compliance to bid requirements. In relation to excoeding the limitation ontheuse ofin-houseequipment and labor for a cozastruction project, an opinion fi'om the attorney general will be obtained for the landfill, prioJ to incurring construction costs exceeding the limit of $50,000. Additional Explanation: Corrective action is listed as partial since bid violations were noted for the current fiscal year - see the Corrective Action Plan for Current Year Audit Findings, following this schedule. Reference Numbers: Exhibit P, Item 2 Fiscal Year Finding Initially Occurred: 12/31/95 Description of Findings Prior year audit findings nolzd that the Energy Mana~,ement Agreement between Energy Masters Corporation and the Tangipahoa Parish Council required the contIactor (Energy Masters Co:poration) to provide a performance bond on the project to cover the initial costs of labor and material installed on the project. Correction Action Taken: Not applicable. Corrective Action Taken: Since the performance bond was to cover the initial costs of labor and materials installed on the project, and this phase of the project has been completed, procurement of a performance bond is not feasible. Reference Numbers: Ey2tibit P, Item 3 Fiscal Year Finding Initially Occurred: 12/31/95 Description of Findings Findings for the prior fiscal year noted noncornpliance with Louisiana Revised Statutes 39:1301:1314, requiring the Parish Council to amend budgets when actual expenditures within a fund exceed budgeted expenditures by five percent or more, or revenue collections within a fund fail to meet estimated annual budgeted revenues by five percent or more. Exceptions were noted for the following Special Revenue funds 
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Page 3 Fire Protection District No. 2 Actual expenditures exceeded budgeted expenditures by 17.94% Section 8 Housing 
Section 8 Voucher 

Actual revenues were below budgeted revenues by 7.31%. 
Actual expenditures exceeded budgeted expenditures by 17.32 % Also, it was noted that the notice of a public hearing was published late. State law requires the notice to be published 10 days prior to the hearing - the notice was published four days in advance of the hearing. In addition, the Council was noted to be in noncompliance to Section 5-05 of the Parish Charter, since supporting documentation was not included in the five-year capital improvement budget as to the necessib for such improvements and acquisitions, nor was fl~ere an estimated annual cost of operating and maintaining the capital improvements. Correction Action Taken: Partially 

Partial Corrective Action Taken It was noted by management that they would more closely monitor and amend budgets as required, and insure that notices of public hearings would be published at least 10 days prior to the hearing. The budget message for fiscal year 1997 incorporated a statement noting the excessive amount of roadways in Tangipahoa Parish that are in need of repair, and the average cost of overlay per mile. Following the listing of roads included in the five-year capital outlay program, and incorporated into the tabular presentation of capital costs, was an estimate of the a~mual cost of operating and maintaining the capital improvements. Additional Explanation Management complied to recommendations to publish notices of public hearings, and to incorporate supporting information into the 5-year capital impzovement budget on the need for the improvements, and estimates on annual costs to maintain the capital improvements. Correction action is listed as partial, since failure to amend the budget was noted in the current fiscal year - see the Corrective Action Plan for Current Year Audit Findings, following this schedule. 
Reference Numbers: Exhibit P, Items 4A-4G Fiscal Year Finding Initially Occurred: 12/31/95 Description of Findings Sewerage District No. 1 was not in compliance with the following covenants in connection with the issuance of $800,000 of Sewer Revenue Bonds: 
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Page 4 A. Maintain rates which will always provide revenues in each year sufficient to pay the reasonable and necessary expanses of operating and maintaining the System, the principal a,ad interest maturing on the bonds, all reserves or sinking funds required for such year, and all other obligations and indebtedness of the System. B. Provide revenues in each year that, after paying all reasonable and necessary expenses of operating and maintaining the System, at least equal to 120% of the largest amount of principal and interest maturing on the bonds in any future fiscal year. C. Shut offservice if delinquent charge is not paid within 30 days. D. Have books audited no later than 3 months after the end of the fiscal year. E. Bond officers or employees in position of authority or in possession of money derived from the operation of the system. F. Establish a Reserve Fund. G. No free services to be furnished to any persons. 
Correction Action Taken: Partially Partial Corrective Action Taken Management's response to the above findings were as follows Items A & B. For the fiscal year ending December 3 l, 1996, the bond debt coverage factor indicated net revenues (before interest expense and depreciation) of 202% of the required bond payments, as compared to 114% for the fiscalyear ending December 31, 1995. In addition, the deficit in uureservedretained earnings decreased by $21,117 from the prior fiscal year to a deficit of $10,193 at December 31, 1995. Management indicated that they would continue to monitor the level of revenues and expenses and the adequacy of the rate structure to further reduce the deficit in unreserved retained earnings. Item C. On April 8, 1996, the Tangipahoa Parish Council approved an ordinance requiring water companies fl the unincorporated areas of Tangipahoa Parish to enter into contracts with Sewerage District No. 1 of the Parish of Tangipahoa, Louisiana, to collect sewerage billings for the sewerage district. The ordinance states that the water company shall provide that any person failing to timely pay the entire billing of sewerage charges within the prescribed time period for utility payment of said water company, then in that event the customer's water service shall be disconnected until all past due sewerage charges and reconnect charges for sewerage billings are paid in full. The sewerage district has reviewed this ordinance with the Rural Economic and Community I')evelopment office and will revise the original bond resolution to reflect the change in disconnect policy, submit the change to the bondholder for approval, and then bring the changes to the sewerage district board of direetors and parish council, for approval. Item D. Books of the Sewerage District No. 1 of the Parish of Tangipahoa, Louisiana, were audited within 90 days of the end of' the fiscal year. A separate audit report and management letter were issued on March 12, 1997. Item E. Managemcmt has provided to the Rural Economic and Community Development (RECD) office, a copy of the "Public Employee Dishonesty Coverage" bond. This bond provides blanket coverage of $50,000 for public official and employees of the Tangipahoa Parish Council. Receipts of funds for sewerage fees arc received and recorded by the parish council, and disbursement of funds is made under the direction of the parish council. 
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Page 5 Item F. The Reserve Fund requires monthly deposits of $212.g0 beginning May 1995. The fund was established in 1996, and the total amount of $4,256 deposited as of December 31, 1996, exceeds the amount required per applicable bond covenants. Item G. The sewerage district has reviewed all active accounts to insure that no one receives fi'ce services. Additional Explanation: The corrective action taken is listed as partial, since Items A, B, and C will require follow-up for compliance - see the Correcn've Action Plan for Current Year Audit Findings, following this schedule. 
Reference Numbers: Exhibit P, Item 5 Fiscal Year Finding Initially Occurred: 12/31/95 Description of Findings I~: was noted that nine to twelve households on the Vehna sewerage system were receiving sewer services but were not being billed for their usage. Correction Action Taken: Partially Partial Corrective Action Taken As noted in Exhibit P, Item 4C, the Tangipahoa Parish Council passed an ordinance requiring water comparfies in the rural areas to provide billing services for the sewerage district. For the Velma System, a private company provides the billing services, and attempLs have been made to connect all customers to the sewcr~ge system. Based on the most current review, a total of seven households are not hooked up to the water system. Two of the houses are vacant, three of the households must have an income eligibility determination before book-up, and the remaining two must be refi~rred to the health department to detemfine action to require hookup. Additional Explanation: Findings will requ/re follow-up to determine compliance Reference Numbers: Exlfibit P, Item 6 Fiscal Year Finding Initially Occurred: 12/31/95 Description of Findings 
On June 14, 1995, an investigative report was released by the Legislative Auditor on the Tangipahoa Parish Coroner. The investigation found that the coroner billed the Tangipahoa Parish Council, during the period of January 1992 through January 1995, for sanity evaluations and sanity investigations that he did not perform The corouer was indicted and trial is pending. One of the recommendations offlae Legislative Auditor was for the Parish to obtain a clear understanding of the services the coroner is providing and ensure that all fees paid are in compliance with Louisiana Law. 
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Page 6 Correction Action Taken: Yes Corrective Action Taken The Tangipahoa P~msh Council has complied to the recommendations of the Louisiana Legislative Auditor The newly elected coroner is now a deparlanent in the General Fund. Reference Numbers: Exhibit Q Fiscal Year Finding Initially Occurred: 12/31/95 Description of Findings Prior year audit findings noted that the Tangipahoa Parish Council had not complied with provisions of the Drug-Free Workplace Act. Correction Action Taken: Yes 
Corrective Action Taken The Tangipahoa P~msh Council has implemented policies to comply with provisions of the Drug-Free Workplace Act, and has incorporated those policies into the personnel manual for the council. Random drt,g testing was implemented at the end of fiscal year 1996. Reference Numbers: Exhibit R, Item 1 Fiscal Year Finding Initially Occurred: 12/31/95 Description of Findings: The prior year audit repoxt noted numerous findings for the Fiscal Year 1993 LCDBG Velma Project. As a result of review by the HUD Inspector General's Office, the Parish is sanctioned from participation in the LCDBG Program for a period of five years, such period to begin upon conditional closeout of two LCDt]G grants currently fimded for the Tangipahoa Parish Council. Audit recommendalions noted that the council must assure the accuracy and completeness of documents relating to an LCDBG program. Change orders should be approved by the Council and no payment made without the signed approval of the engineer. The certificate of substantial completion should not be signed until the construction is sufficiently completed in accordance with contract requirements, and all LCDBG docmnents should be kept at the council office. Correction Action Taken: Yes Corrective Action Taken: Management of the Tangipahoa Parish Council has leviewed documentation for the two on-going LCDBG projects, and has indicated that they will more closely follow and supervise all work done on behalf of the parish. At fiscal year-end for 1996, there were no construction contracts awarded for the LCDBG projects 
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Reference Numbers: Exhibit A Description of Finding: 

TANGIPAHOA PARISH COUNCIL 
Corrective Action Plan for Current Year Audit Findings For the Year Ended December 31, 1996 SCHEDULE 19 

Louisiana Revised Statute (LSA-R.S. 24:515) requires the council to maintain records of all fixed assets and movable property, to include the initial cost and disposition of property, if applieable. Findings for the fisca year ending December 31, 1996, were as follows: 1) During the year, the council sold the old Health Unit, but the asset was not taken off the general fixed asset list. 2) The additions for the year on the books did not agree with the general fixed asset list of additions. This was due to the fact that some of the assets that were purchased with trade-in were reported on the books at net cost. 3) Capital expenditures per general ledger were not reconciled to the fixed asset additions list on a monthly basis. This level of management control is required to properly manage and account for property of the Tangipahoa Parish Council. Considerable progress was noted in the management of fixed assets. All items were inventoried and locations of items verified for the current fiscal year. However, the following changes are recommended to improve the ~ccounling /'or fixe3 assets: 1) Management should reconcile fixed assets at least once a month to insure all additions and deletions arc recorded properly. 2) Managemen! should record all assets purchased at full value. When another asset is traded in on a ne~s asset, the trade-in should be shown as a sale of fixed assets. 3) Management should consider modification of the current fixed asset program, or purchase of a new program. This would allow more flexible reporting options and inventory of fixed assets with the use of microreaders. The use of micro readers to read inventory tags is necessary to effectively manage the large volume of assets under the control of the council. Corrective Action Planned Management will miplement procedures to reconcile capital expenditures recorded in the general ledger, to fixed asset additions input into the fixed asset listing. Deletions to the fixed asset list will be recorded on a timely basis. In addition, acquisition costs of each asset will be reviewed to insure that all asset purchases are zecorded at fidl value. We will also begin a review of fixed asset software, to improve reporting options and allow inventory of fixed assets with the use of micro readers. Name of Contact Person: Buddy Wier, Finance Director Tangipahoa Parish Council (504) 748-3211 
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Page 2 Anticipated Completion Date We will immediately begin action to comply with recommendations (1) and (2) above, and anticipate compliance no later than September 30, 1997. For recommendation (3), we will begin a search for new fixed asset software, and plan to fmalize the search no later than December 31, 1997. Reference Numbers: Exhibit B, Item 1 
Description of Finding: Louisiana Revised Statutes (LSA-R.S. 38:2212) require all purchases of materials or supplies exceeding the sum often thousand dollars to be advertised and let by contract to the lowest responsible bidder. Purchases of :five thousand dollars or more, but less than ten thousand dollars shall be made by obtaining no less than three telephone or facsimile quotations. The following findings were noted for the current year audit: 1) During the year, the council purchased a side mower for $8,800, and pipe for $5,475. Neither of these items were properly bid by receiving the required number of telephone quotes or facsimile quotes. 
The audit recommendation was to comply to the bid law for all purchases Corrective Action Planned: Management of the Tangipahoa Parish Council will immediately review procedures for soliciting and approving bids, and will comply to the audit re, commendations. Name of Contact Person Buddy Wier, Finance Director Tangipahoa Parish Council (504) 748-3211 Anticipated Completion Date We will comply to the audit recommendations immediately 

Reference Numbers: Exhibit B, Item 2 Description of Finding: Budget procedures applicable to amending budgets are specified in Louisiana Revised Statutes 39:1301-1314 and in Article V, Section 5-02 through 5-06 of the Tangipahoa Parish Home Rule Charter. The revised statutes require the council to amend budgets when actual expenditures within a fund exceed budgeted expenditures by five percent or more, or revenue collections within a fund fail to meet estimated annual budgeted revenues by five percent or more. Exceptions were noted for: a) Road Lighting District # 3 was 9.94% over budget. b) Fire Protection District # 2 was 5.82% over budget. 
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Page 3 Audit recommendations noted that budgets mtu~t be an~ended on a timely basis. Corrective Action Planned: Management of the Tangipahoa Parish Council stated that the budget variance was due to unexpected financial adjustments made~ following the close of the fiscal 3,ear. The Tangipahoa Council will in the future attempt to more closely anticipate the effect of year-end adjustments on actual revenues and expenditures. Name of Contact Person: 
Buddy Wier, Finance Director Tangipahoa Parish Council (504) 748-3211 Anticipated Completion Date: We will continue to monitor the need for budget adjustments, and will more closely review the necessity of budget anaendments at fiscal year end. 

Reference Numbers: Exhibil C, Item 1 Description of Finding: With the issuance of the 1993 Revenue Bonds, the Sewerage District covenants that they will provide revenues ,;ufficicnt to pay the reasonable expenses of operating and maintaining the system, and to fund all obligations of the district, inc]uding required reserves or sinking funds for bonded indebtedness. The district continues to show a deficit in unreserved retained earnings of $(10,193) for the fiscal year ending December 31, 1996. However, this also represents an improvement for the district, since the deficit de, creased by $21,117, from thc prior fiscal year. We recommend that the district cx,ntinue to monitor the level of revenue and expenses and the adequacy of the rate structure to further reduce the deficit in unreserved retained earnings. Corrective Action Planned The board of directors of Sewerage District No. 1, and the council will continue to review the level of revenues and expenses, on a monthly basis, in order to reduce the deficit in unreserved retained earnings. 
Name of Contact Person Buddy Wier, Finance Director, Tangipahoa Parish Council (504) 748-3211 Anticipated Completion Date: This involves continuing management review by the board of directors of Sewerage District No. 1, and the Parish Council. 
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Page 4 Reference Numbers: Exhibit C, Item 2 
Description of Finding: Within the prior fiscal year audit, it was noted that sewerage customers were not being disconnected for non- payment, within 30 days from the date on which such charges become delinquent, in accordance with requirements of the original bond resolution. In response, the Tangipahoa Parish Council approved an ordinance requiring water companies in Tangipahoa Parish to provide billing services for the sewerage district ~md to disconnect past due accounts in accordance with the prescribed time pericnl for utility payment of said water company. The ordinance provides that all sewerage fees must be paid before re-connect of water service. This ordinance was a positive step in complying to bond covenants, but the sewerage district is still required, under the tern~s specified in a letter dated August 29, 1996, from the Rural Economic and Community Development office, to amend the approved bond resolution to reflect changes in disconnect policy. Recommendation for the current financial audit was for the board of commissioners of the sewerage district to meet and determine the appropriate response to the Rural Economic aud Community Development bond requirements. Corrective Action Planned Representatives of the Sewer District and council have met with legal counsel and are revising the original bond resolution re, conform to disconnect policy adepled in the parish ordinance referred to above. Name of Contact Person 
Buddy Wier, Finance Director Tangipahoa Parish Council (504) 748-3211 Anticipated Completion Date: We anticipate final revision and approval of the amended bond resolution no late~' than the end of the curren fiscal year. Reference Numbers: Exhibil C, Item 3 Description of Finding The original bond covenants for Sewerage District No. 1 specified that a penalty will be charged on past due accounts, interest will be charged on past due accounts, and a reconnect charge will be assessed when the delinquent account is reconnected. We found no evid(mce to indicate that these charges were being assessed by the water companies providing billing services for the sewer district. Since billing services must be provided by numerous water companies, the Tangipahoa Parish Council has taken a positive step in passage of the above described ordinance. However, the original bond covenants require a 10% penalty on past due accounts and interest of not less than 5% per annunt on delinquent accounts after 10 days from the date of the delinquency, and a reconnect charge. We recommend that the district either notify the water companies providing billing services of these requirements, or request a specific waiver of these requirements from the l~.ural Economic and Community Development office. 
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Page 5 Corrective Action Planned The board of comndssioners will meet to determine the appropriate response to the Rural Economic and Community Development bond requirements. Name of Contact Person Buddy Wier, Finance Director, Tangipahoa Parish Council (504) 748-3211 Anticipated Completion Date: We will notify RECD of the current policy for charging penalties and accumulated charges on past due accounts, and will amend the original bond resolutiolts as required. Upon resolving this issue, we will notif) the billing companies for the sewerage district of any revised policies for charges on accounts. (Concluded) 
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Bruce C. na~cll. CPA Warren IL Wool, CPA Michael P, Eslay, CPA Dale If. Jones, CPA Charles P. ]leberk CPA James D. Rabalais, CPA 

BRUCE tIARRELL & CO. CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS A Pmfc~on=l Accoanting Cocpor=t~on 109 West Mirknesota Park Park Place Suite 7 Hammond, LA 70403 VOICE: (504) 542-6372 FAX: (504) 345-3156 
KENTWOOD OFFICE P.O. Box 45 - 602 Fifth Kcntwood, LA 70444 VOICE: (504) 229-5955 FAX: (504) 229-5951 MEMBERS American Institute of CPAx Society of Louisiana C}'A~ 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL STRUCTURE BASED ON AN AUDIT OF PRIMARY GOVERNMENT FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENTA UDITING STANDARDS 
To the Parish President and Members of the Tangipahoa Parish Council Amite, Louisiana We have audited the primary government financial statements of Tangipahoa Parish Council, Louisiana, as of and for the year endcA December 31, 1996, and have issued our report thereon dated June 4, 1997. We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and the provisions of Office of Management and Budget Circular A-128, Audits of State and Local Governments. Those standards and OMB Circular A-128 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasouable assurance about whether the primary government fmancial statements are free of material misstatement. The management of Tangipahoa Parish Council, Louisiana, is responsible for establisblng and maintaining an i~terual control structure. In fulfilling this responsibility, estimates and judgments by management are required to assess the expected benefits and related costs of internal control stnlcture policies and procedures. The objectives of an interual control structure are to provide management with reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use or disposition, mid that transactions are executed in accordance with mmlagemcnt's authorization and recorded properly to permit the preparation of primary government tinancial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Because of inherent limitations in any internal control structure, errors or irregularities may neveJrtheless occur and not be detected. Also, projection of any evaluation of the structure to future periods is subject to the risk that procedures may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the effectiveness of the design and operation of policies and procedures may deteriorate. 
In planning and performing our audit of the primary govenunent financial statements of Tangipahoa Parish Cotmcil, Louisiana, for the year ended December 31, 1996, we obtained an understanding of the internal control structure With respect to the internal control st1~acture, we obtained an understanding of the design of relevant policies and procedures and whether they have been placed in operation, and we assessed control risk in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the primary government financial statements and not to provide an opinion on the internal control structure. Accordingly, wc do not express such an opirdon. 
We noted certain matters on Exhibit A involving the intenlal control structure and its operation that we consider to be reportable conditions under standards established by the Panerican Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Reportable conditions involve matters coming to our attention relating to significant deficiencies in the design or operation of the internal control structure that, in our judgment, could adversely affect the entity's ability to record, process, sununariT~e, and report fmancial data consistent with the assertions of management in the prima.,), government financial statements. 
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BRUCE HARRELL & CO. CERTIFZ[ED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS A Pr~est~Jl Accounting ~>mom~ Page 2 
A material weakness is a reportable condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control structure elements does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that errors or irregularities in amounts that ,a'ould be material in relation to the primary government financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of perfo*ming their assigned functions. Our consideration of the internal control structure would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control structure that might be reportable c~onditions and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all reportable conditions that are also considered to be material weaknesses as defmed above. However, we believe none of the reportable conditions described above is a material weakness. We also noted other matters involving the internal conts'ol structure and its operation that we have reported to the management of Tangipahoa Parish Council, Louisiana, in a separate letter dated June 4, 1997. 
This report is intended for the information of management, the Legislative Auditor, and the Federal Cognizant Agent However, this report is a raatter of public record, mad its distribution is not limited. 
Bruce Harrell & Co., CPAs Hammond, Louisiana June 4, 1997 
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BRUCE HARRELL & CO. CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS A P~hD~or~l Ac~our~cg C~rpo~Uon 109 West Minnesota Park Park Place Suite 7 Hammond, LA 70403 VOICE: (504) 542-6372 FAX: (504) 345-3156 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL STRUCTURE USED IN ADMINISTERING FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS To the Parish President and Members of the Tangipahoa Parish Council Amite, Louisiana 

KENTWOOD OFFICE P.O. Box 45 - 602 Filet St Kcmwood, LA "70444 VOICE: (504) 229-5955 FAX: (504) 229-5951 MEMBERS American Institute of C PA-~ Soeitay of Louisi~a CPA~ 

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards; Government Auditing Standard.~, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and Office of Management and Budget Circular A-I 2g, Audits of State and Local Governments. Those standards and OMB Circular A-128 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the primary government financial statements are free of material misstatement and about whether Tangipahoa Parish Council, Louisiana, complied with laws and reguhttions, noncompliance with ~hich would be material to a major federal financial assistance program. In planning and perforn~ing our audits for the year ended December 31, 1996, we considered the internal control su~clure of Tangipahoa Parish Council, Louisiana, in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the primary government financial statements of Tangipahoa Parish Council, Louisiana, and on the con~pliance of Tangipahoa Parish Council, Louisiana, with requirernents applicable to major programs and to report on the internal control structure in accordance with OMB Circular A-12~L This report addresses out' consideration of internal control structure, policies and procedures relevant to compliance with requirements applicable to federal financial assistance progranas. We have addressed internal control structure policies and procedures relevant to our audit of the primary government fmancial statements in a separate report dated June 4, 1997. The management of Tangipahoa Parish Council, Louisiana, is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure, h~ fulfilling this responsibility, estimates and judgments by management are required to assess the expected benefits and related costs of internal control structure policies and procedures. The objectives of an intcrnal control structure are to provide management with reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use or disposition, that transactions are executed in accordance with managcrncnt's authorization and recorded properly to permit the preparation of primary government financial statements in accordance with generally accepted a~~counting principles, and that federal financial assistance programs are managed in compliance with applicable laws and regulations. 
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BRUCE HARRELL & CO. CERTIFTED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS A Profess(o~|4 Accoun~.g Co~o~ Page 2 
Because of inherent limitations in any internal control structure, errors, irregularities, or instances of noncompliance may nevertheless occur and not be detected. Also, projection of any evaluation of the structure to future periods is subject to the risk that procedures may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the effectiveness of the design and operation of policies and procedures may deteriorate. For the purpose of this report, we have classified the significant internal control structure policies and procedures used in administering federal financial assistance programs in the following categories: 
Accounting Controls Billings Receivables Cash receipts Purchasing and receiving Accounts payable Cash disbursements Payroll Property and equipment General ledger 

Controls Used in Administerine Federal Prourams General Requirements Political activity Davis-Bacon Act Civil rights Cash management Federal financial reports Drug-free workplace 

_.~S ecific Requirements Types of services Eligibility Reporting Special requirements 

For all of the internal control sla'ucture categories listed above, we obtained an understanding of the design of relc~ ant policies and procedures and determined whether they have been placed in operation, and we assessed control risk During rite year ended December 31, 1996, Tangipahoa Parish Council, Louisiana, expended 99.35% of its total fedcra financial assistance under major federal financial assistance programs. We performed tests of controls, as required by OMB Cheular A-128, to evaluate the effectiveness of the design and operation of internal control strncture policies and procodures that we considered relevant to preventing or detecting material noncompliance with specific requirements, general requirements, and requirements governing claims for advances and reimbursements and amounts claimed or used fur matching that are applicable to ench of Tangipahoa Parish C.ouncil, Louisiar, a's major federal fiBancial assistance programs, which are identified in the a(w, ompanying Schedule of Federal Financial Assistance. Our procedures were less in scope than would be necessary to render an opinion on these internal control structure policies and procedures. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. Our consideration of the internal control structure policies and procedures used in administering federal financial assistance would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control structure that might constitute material weaknesses under standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control structure elements does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that noncompliance with laws and regulations that would be material to a federal fmancial assistance program may occur mad not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control structure and its operations that we consider to be material weaknesses as defmed above. 
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BRUCE HARRELL & CO. CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS A ~ess~na; A~ou~ng Coq~o~o~ Page 3 
However, we noted other matters involving the internal control structure and its operation that we have reported to the manageraent of Tangipahoa Parish Council, Louisiana, in a separate letter dated June 4, 1997. This report is intended for the information of management, the Legislative Auditor, ~md the Federal Cognizant Agent. However, this report is a matter of public record, and its distJibution is not limited. 
Bruce Harrell & Co., CPAs Hammond, Louisiana June 4, 1997 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE BASED ON AN AUDIT OF PRIMARY GOVERNMENT FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT A UDI TING STANDARDS To the Parish President and Members of the Tangipahoa Parish Council Amite, Louisiana 
We have audited the primary government financial statements of Tangipahoa Parish Council, Louisiana, as of and ff,r the year endc, d December 31, 11996, and have issued our report thereon dated June 4, 1997. We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. 
Compliance with laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to Tangipahoa Parish Council, Louisiana, is the responsihility of Tangipahoa Parish Council, Louisiana's management. As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of Tangipahoa Parish Council, Louisiana's compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants. However, the objective of our audit of the primary government financial statements was not to provide an opinion on overall compliance with such provisions. Accordingly, we do not express such an ophfion. The results of our tests disclosed the following instances of noncompliance, included in Exhibit B, that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards for which the ultimate resolution cannot be presently detemfined. Accordirtgly, no provision for any liability that may result has been recognized in these primary government financial statemcots. We noted certain inmaaterial instances of noncompliance that we have reported to the management of the Tangipahoa Parish Council, Louisiana, in a separate letter dated June 4, 1997. This report is intended for the information of management, the Legislative Auditor, and the Federal Cognizant Agent However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited. 

Bruce Harrell & Co., CPAs Hammond, Louisiana June 4, 1997 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO MAJOR FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS To the Parish President and Members of the Tangipahoa Parish Council Amite, Louisiana 

KENTWOOD OFFICE P.O. Box 45 - 602 Fifth St Kcntwood, LA 70444 VOICE: (504) 22%5955 FAX: (504) 229-5951 MEMBERS American lnetitut~ of CPA~ Society of Louisiam CPAs 

We have audited the prim;my government financial statements of Tangipahoa Parish Council, Louisiana, as of and for the year ended December 31, 1996, and have issued our report thereon dated June 4, 1997. 
We have also audited Tangipahoa Parish Council, Louisiana's compliance with the requirements governing bqges of services allowed or unallowed; eligibility; reporting; special tests and provisions; claims for advances and reimbursements; and amounts claimed or used for matching that are applicable to each of its major federal financial assistance programs, which are identified in the accompanying Schedule of Federal Financial Assistance, for the year ended December 31, 1996. The management of Tangipahoa Parish Council, Louisiana, is responsible for the Tangipahoa Parish Council, Louisiana's compliance with those requirements. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance with/}lose requirements based on out" audit. 
We conducted our audit of compliance with those requirements in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards; Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and Office of Managarnent and Budget Circular A-128, Audits of State andLocal Governments. Those standards and OMB Circular A-128 require that we plan and perform the andit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the requirements referred to above occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Tangipahoa Parish Council, Louisiana's compliance with those requirements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opiuion. The results of our audit procedtlres disclosed immaterial instances of noncompliance with the requirements referred to above, which are described in the management letter dated June 4, 1997. We considered these instances of noncompliance in forming our opinion on compliance, which is expressed in the following paragraph. 
In our opinion, Tangipahoa Parish Council, Louisiana, complied, in all material respects, with the requirements governing types of services allowed or unallowed; eligibility; reporting; special tests and provisions; claims for advances and reimbursements; and amounts claimed or used for nmtehing that are applicable to each of its major federal financial assistance programs for the year ended December 31, 1996. This report is intended for the information of management, the Legislative Auditor, and the Federal Cognizant Agent. However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited. 
Brace Harrell & Co., CPAs Hammond, Louisiana June 4, 1997 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE GENERAL REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS To the Parish President and Members of the Tangipahoa Parish Council Amite, Louisiana 

KENTWOOD OFFICE P.O. Box 45 - 602 Fifth St Kentwood, LA 70444 VOICE: (504) 229-5955 FAX: (504) 229-5951 MEMBERS American Institute of CPA.s Society of Louisiana CI',~ 

We have audited the prim~~ government financial statements of Tangipahoa Parish Cotmcil, Louisiana, as of and ff~t the year cndcxt December 31, 1996, and have issued our report thereon dated Jtme 4, 1997. We have applied procedures to test Tangipahoa Parish Council, Louisiana's compliance with the following requirements applicable to its federal financial assistance programs, which are identified in the Schedule of Federal l:mm~cial Assistance, for the year ended December 31, 1996: political activity, Davis-Bacon Act, civil rights, cash management, federal financial reports, Drug-free Workplace Act, or administrative requirements. Our procedures were limited to the applicable procedures described in the Office of Management and Budget's Compliance Supplement for Single Audits of State and Local Governments. Our procedures were substantially less in scope than an audit, the objective of which is the expression of an opinion on Tangipahoa Parish Council, Louisiana's compliance with the requirements listed in the preceding paragraph. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 
With respect to the items tested, the results of those procedures disclosed no material in,;tances of noncompliance with the requirements listed in the second paragraph of this report. With respect to items not tested, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that Tangipahoa Parish Cotmcil, Louisiana, had not complied, in all material respects, with those requirements. This report is intended for the information of management, the Legislative Auditor, and the Federal Cognizant Agent. However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited. 
Bruce Hatrell & Co., CPAs Hammond, Louisiana June 4, 1997 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITtt SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO NO,NMAJOR FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM TRANSACTIONS 

To the Parish President and Members of the Tangipahoa Parish Council Amite, Louisiana We have audited the prim~Lry government fmancial statements of Tangipahoa Parish Council, Louisiana, as of and for the year ended December 31, 1996, and have issued our report thereon dated June 4, 1997. In connection with our audit of the primary goverunlent fmancial statements of Tangipahoa Parish Council, Louisiana, and with our consideration of Tangipahoa Parish Council, Lonisiana's control structure used to administer federal financial assistance programs, as required by Office of Management and Budget Circular A-128, Audits of State and Local Governments, we selected cortain transactions applicable to certain nonmajor federal fmancial assistance programs for the year ended December 31, 1996. As required by OMB Circular A-128, we have performed auditing procedures to test compliance with the requirements governing types of services allowed or unallowed; eligibility; and special tests and provisions that are applicable to those transactions. Our procedures were substantially less in scope than an audit, the objective of which is the expression of an opinion on Tangipahoa Parish Council, Louisiana's compliance with these requirements. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 
With respect to the items tested, the results of those procedures disclosed no material instances of noncompliance with the requirements listed in the prec, eAing paragraph. With respex:t to items not tested, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that Tangipahoa Parish Council, Louisiana, had not complied, in all material respects, with those requirements. This report is intended for the information of management, the Legislative Auditor, and the Federal Cognizant Agent However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited. 
Bruce Harrell & Co., CPAs Hammond, Louisiana June 4, 1997 
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TANGIPAHOA PARISH COUNCIL FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS Reportable Conditions in the lntemal Control Structure For the Year Ended December 31, 1996 
FIXED ASSETS 

EXHIBIT A 

Louisian~ Revised Statute (LSA-R.S.) 24:515 requires the council to maintain records of all fixed assets and movable property to include the initial cost and disposition of such property, if applicable. 
1) During the year, the cxmncil sold the old Health Unit, but the asset was not taken offthe general fixed asset list 2) The additions for the year on the books did not agree with the general fixed asset list of additions. This was due to the fact that some of the assets that were purchased with trade-ins were recorded on the books at net cost. 3) Capital expenditures per general ledger were not reconciled to the fixed additions list on a monthly basis. This level of management control is required to properly manage and account for the property of the council. 
1) Management should try to reconcile fixed assets at least once a month to insure all additions and deletions are recorded properly. 2) Management should record all assets purchased at full value. When another asset is traded-in on a new asset, the trade-in should be shown as sale of fixed assets. 3) Management should eonsider modification of the current fixed assets program, or purchase a new prograan to allow fixed assets to be inventories with the use of micro readers. Such a modification is necessary to actually manage the large volume of assets under the control of the council. 
See Schedule of Corrective Action Plan for Current Year Audit Findings 
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TANGIPAHOA PARISH COUNCIL FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS Noncompliance with Laws and Regulations For the Year Ended December 31, 1996 
P_._I~ L L(: _B I D LAW 

EXHIBIT B 

Louisiana Revised Statute (LSA-R.S.) 38:2212 requires all purchases of any materials or supplies exceeding the sum of ten thousand dollars to be advertised and let by contract to the lowest responsible bidder. Purchases of five thousand dollars or more, but less than ten thousand dollars shall be made by obtaining no less than three telephone or facsimile quotations. 
1) During the year, the council purchased a side mower for $8,800, and pipe for $5,475. Neither of these items were properly bid by receiving telephone or facsimile quotes. 
1) The public bid law should be followed for all purchases that come under the bid law 
See Schedule of Corrective Action Plan for Current Year Audit Findings BUDGET LAW Louisiana Revised Statute (LSA-R.S.) 39:1301 - 1314 requires the council to amend budget when actual expenditures plus projected expenditures wiflfin a fund for the remainder of the year exceed budgeted expenditures by five percent or more, or revenue collections plus projected revenue collecticnls within a fund for the remainder' of the year fail to meet estimated annual budgeted revenues by five percent or more. 
1 ) During the year, the comacil did not amend the budgets for the following funds for which actual expenditures exeeczlcd budgeted expenditures, by more than five percent. Unfavorable Variance Special Revenue Funds: Road Lighting District # 3 Fire Protection District # 2 $ $ 

Budgeted Actual Per Cent 3,419 $ 822,029 $ 3,759 869,870 
1) The state budget law should be monitored closely and muended when necessary 
See Schedule of Corrective Action Plan for Current Year Audit Findings. 
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TANGIPAHOA PARISH COUNCIL FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS Noncompliance with Specific Requiremen~ Applicable to Major Programs For the Year Ended December 31, 1996 

EXHIBIT C 

1) With the issuance of the 1993 Revenue Bonds, the Sewerage District covenants that they will provide revenues sufficient to pay the reasonable expenses of operating and maintaining the system, and to fund all obligations of the district, including required reserves or sinking funds for bonded indebtedness. The district continues to show a deficit in unreserved retained earnings of $(10,193) for the fiscal year ending December 31, 1996. However, this also represents an improvement for the district, since the deficit decreased by $21,117, from the prior fiscal year. 2) Within the prior fiscal year audit, it was noted that sewerage customers were not being disconnected for non-pa)~ent, within 30 days from the date on which such charges become delinquent, in accordance with requiremenL~ of the original bond resolution, hi response, the Tangipahoa Parish Council approved an ordinance requiring water companies in Tangipahoa Parish to provide billing services for the sewerage district and to disconnect past due accounts in accordance with the prescribed time period for utility payment of said water company. The ordinance provides that all sewerage fees must be paid before re-connect of water service. This ordinance was a positive step in complying to bond covenants, but the sewerage district is still required, under the terms specified in a letter dated August 29, 1996, from the Rural Economic and Community Development offi~~e, to amend the approved bond resolution to reflect changes in disconnect policy. 3) The original bond covenants for Sewerage District No. 1 specified that a penalty will be charged on past due accounts, interest will be charged on past due accounts, and a reeounect charge will be assessed when the delinquent account is reconnected. We found no evidence to indicate that these charges were being assessed by the water companies providing billing services for the sewer district. Since billing services must be provided by numerous water companies, the Tangipahoa Parish Council has taken a positive step in passage of the above described ordinance. However, the original bond covenants require a 10% l~enalty on past due accounts and interest of not less than 5% per annum on delinqu~mt accounts after 10 days from the date of the delinquency, and a reconnect charge. 
We recommend that the district continue to monitor the level of revenue and expenses and the adequacy of the ~ ate structure to further reduce the deficit in unreserved retained earnings. We recommend the board of cormnissioners of the sewerage district to meet and determine the appropriate res to the Rural Economic and Community Development bond requirements. We recormnend that the district either notify the water companies providing billing services of these requirements or request a specific waiver of these requkements from the Rural Economic and Conununity Development office. 
See Schedule of Corrective Action Plan for Current Year Audit Findings. 
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MANAGEMENT LETTER 

BRUCE HARRELL & CO. CERTIHED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS A Profoss~l Aex,~nUng Co~rslicn 109 West Minnesota Park Park Place Suite 7 Hammond, LA 70403 VOICE: (504) 542-6372 FAX: (504) 345-3156 

To the Parish President and Members of the Tangipahoa Parish Council Amite, Louisiana 

KENTIIVOOD OFFICE P.O. Box 45 - 602 Fifth St. Kentwood, LA 70444 VOICE: (504) 229-5955 FAX: (504) 22%5951 MEMBERS American Institute of (:['As Society of Louisiana CPAs 

We have examined the primary government financial statements of tile Tangipahoa Parish Council, Louisiana, as of and for the year ended December 31, 1996. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the internal control structure in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on tbe primary government financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control structure. However, we noted certain weaknesses in tbe internal control structure, flint, if corrected, could improve the ability of management of the Tangipahoa Parislr Council, Louisiana to record, process, sulnnlarize, and report financial data eonsislent with the assertions of n'Janagenlcnt. The formal below is separated into two sections. Section 1 lists "Current Year Findings". Section 2 presents "Prior Year Findings", and includes only the prior year findings fol which follow-up is required. For prior year findings for which follow-up is still required, a sub-section entitled "Continuing Audit Recommendations" has been 
SECTION 1 - CURRENT YEAR FINDINGS llNCI~AIMED CASH - POOLING ACCOUNT 
A. Current Year Findings: Under provisions of the Unclaimed Property Statute (Act 829 of the 1986 Regular Session of the Louisiana Legislature) governmental agencies are required to report unclaimed properly to the State. Unclaimed properly for the Tangipahoa Parish Council consists of $1,655.63 in outstanding checks of the old Pooling accouot. B. Current Year Audit Recommendations We recommend that the council file the required forms with the Department of' Revenue and Taxation Unclaimed Property Section, transferring the funds 1o the State as soon as is possible. 
C. Management Response to Audit Recommendations The unclaimed checks will be transferred to the State as soon as possible 



BRUCE HARRELL & CO. CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS A prof~onal A~untJng C.~!~mtlon M~magement Letter Tangipahoa Parish Council, Louisiana Page 2 
NF:GATIVE CASH BA1,ANCES - POOLING ACCOUNT A. Current Year Findings 
At fiscal year-end, the council maintained a negative cash balance in the active "Pooling" cash account for all fundS. The negative cash balances do not appear on the individual fund balance sheets, since the cash account is ~~ombined with the "'LAMP" investment account for financial reporting. The cash accounts and "LAMP" invcstmenls are combined for financial repol~ing, since "LAMP" investments arc categorized as cash equivalents and generally available on request. However, prudent financial management dictates that expenditures not exc~.A currently available cash. 
B. Current Year Audit Recommendations We recommend that cash balance be reviewed more closely to determine that adequate funds are available for expenditure. C. Management Response to Audit Recommendations 
Cash account baleawa~ were negative at fiscal year-end, since payroll and payables cheeks were issued durin~ the final week of the fiscal year. Pa)ancnt should have been delayed to the following fiscal year. We will more closely monitor the availability of cash before incurring expenditures. PARISH TRANSPORTATION ACT - ANNUAL PRIORITY LIST A. Current Year Findings 
The Tangipahoa Parish Council has documentx~t extensively the procedures enacted to comply with the Parish Transportation Act. ~l]ae council develops a list of roads for the 5-year Capital Oullay Budget, and prioritizes planned expenditures as funds become available. However, the Parish Transportation Act specifically stales that the parishwide eapital improvement progranr shall list all projects to be constructed during the fiscal YeaL and shall be prioritiz.ed based on parishwide needs. 
B. Current Year Audit Reconunendations Wc recormnend thai: the cxmncil amend its procedures to require adoption of an annual prioritized plan for parish road development, including overlay projects. C. Management Response to Audit Recommendatiorts We will amend the procedures we have adopted for the Parish Transportation Act to include development of an annual prioritized plan and approval of the plan by the council. 



BRUCE IIARREL,L & CO. CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNq'ANTS A Ptof~$~nal A~untJng Corl:.:)~fion Management Letter Tangipahoa Parish Council, Louisiana Page 3 N'FERNAL CONTROLS FOR PAYROLL A. Current Year Findings 
We noted in the review of internal controls for processing payroll transactions, that in some cases, "stamps'~ were being used in place of signatares on payroll summary sheets. Although time cards are available to support payroll transactions, signature of payroll sheets serves as evidence that time worked has been review~ and approved by supervisory personnel. B. Current Year Audit Recommendations 
We recommend that all payroll summary sheets be signed only by supervisory personnel and any "signalu rc stamps' be disposed of immediately. C. Management Response to Audit Recommendations 
We will comply with the above reconunendations SECTION 2 - PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS 
A. Prior Year Finding It was noted that the Tangipahoa Parish Council was in the process of developing a policy and procedurcs manual, but the manual had not yet been completed. It was recommended that the nmnual be completed and approved by the Parish President as soon as possible. B. Management Response to Audit Recommendations The policy and procedures manual has been completed and approved by the Parish President. 
A. Prior Year Finding The prior year management letter noted that according to the 1995 Contract between Fire Protection District No. 2 and the various volunteer fire departments, Fire Protection District No. 2 shall set aside $12,500 which will be allocated to the maintenance and upkeep of all fire equipment owned by Fire Protection District No. 2 and loeated within the Hmnmond zone of responsibility. The City of Hammond would be responsible for all costs of maintenance and upkeep after the parish's $12,500 has been expended. Recommendation was for the Coaneil to obtain clarification on the terms of the agreement and that the related transactions conform to the corttractual agreement. 



BRUCE HARRELL & CO, CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS A ~e~i~al A~untJng Co~o~at~on Management Letter Tangipahoa Parish Council, Louisiana Page 4 B. Management Response to Audit Reeommendations Management has indicated that this matter has been brought to the attention of the Fire Board C. Continuing Audit Reconmaendation: 
We noted that the payments for fiscal year 1996 exceeded the required contract amount plus the requircxl pa3nncnt of $12,500 for maintenance and upkeep of equipment. We recommend that the payment for maintenance and upkeep be designated for payment of specific expenses associated with Fire District 2 equipment under the care of the City of Hammond (m~d that general ledger expenditure codes be created to record these ext~aditures), or that the contract be revised to require the agreed-upon payment be made directl.~ to the City of Hammond to defray the maintenance costs and upkeep associated with the equipment owned b3 Fire District 2. D. Management Response: Wc will again refer this matter to the Fire Board for review BANK SIGNATURE CARD A. Prior Year Finding: 
Prior year management comments noted that bank signature cards for the council included a council employee "d~at bad not been employed by the council since 1994. B. Managemcot Response to Audit Recommendations Bank signature cards have been updated and were verified as part of the 1996 financial audit. ACCOUNTING RECORDS - GENER A A. Prior Year Finding: It was noted that no peneral ledgers were produced for 1995 until the April 1996 accounting was completed This indicated that the recording of 1995 transactions was not reviewed until four months of the year had passed. Also, supporting journals are available fi-om the council's software but were not printed and retained in paper form. B. Management Response to Audit Recommendations Management printed general ledgers and source journals on a timely basis 



BRUCE ]tARREI,L & CO. CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS A Profe~i~al Ane.ountlng Corpo~t~on Management Letter Tangipahoa Parish Council, Louisiana Page 5 C. Contilming Audit Recommendation: 
For Sewerage District No. 1, the general ledger was completed on a timely basis, and a separate audit report, dated March 12, 1997, was issued for the Sewerage District to Comply with requirements of the U.S. Rural Economic and Cmmnunity Development office. Although general ledgers were completed on a timely basis for the ren'uaining funds, and available for review by management, the general ledger for these remaining funds was not closed until after April of 1997. We reconmaend that all general ledger processing be completed within 45 days of fiscal year end, to permit timely completion of the financial audit. 
D. Management Response: The general ledger for all funds will be closed at year-end in a timely mariner ACCOUNTING RF;CORI)S - SLUDGE TREATMENT FACILITY A. Prior Year Finding 
Prior year comments noted that costs, to be reimbursed under the Lake Pontchartrain Basin Foundation grant were not properly do~:umented. Recommendations were to establish separate general ledger accounts for an3 costs associated ~vith a grant project. B. Management Response to Audit Recommendations Management indicated that they would more closdy follow and supervise all work done on behalf of the parish As of the date of this management letter, the council was preparing the billing to collect the final grant rec~ivable on the Lake Pontchartrain Basin Foundation grant. PAYMENT FOR SEWERAGE DISTRICT MEF~TI-NGS A. Prior Year Finding: 
Prior year management letter cormnents recommended that Sewerage District No. I discontinue the payments to board members until the sewerage district is no longer incurring net losses. B. Management Response to Audit Recommendations Ba,,;ed on reduction o:fflm unrescrved retained earnings deficit by $21,119 for the fiscal year ending December 31, 1996, and the increase in cash reserves at fiscal year, it appears that sufficient funds are available fo; payments to comnfissioners of $60 per board meeting. 
A. Prior Year Finding: 



BRUCE HARRELL & CO. CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS A ProVisional Accountin~ Cor~t~on Management Letter Tangipahoa Parish Council, Louisiana Page 6 Prior year comment.,; noted that no depreciation had been calculated on the Velma. Sewerage System. B. Management Response to Audit Recommendations 
The Velma Sma,erage System, and additional sewerage systems donated during 1996, have been added to the books of the sewerage district, and depreciation expense has been calculated. YEAR-END ADJUSTMENTS AND FIXED ASSET RECORDS See "Exhibit A - Reportable Conditions in the haternal Control Structure for the Year Ended December 31, 1996", included in the financial audit report for the fiscal year ending December 31, 1996, for a listing of" findings and recommendations related to fixed asset records. It has been our pleasure to perform this financial audit for you. We will be glad to meet with you in trying t~ provide assistance in implementing the above recommendations. 
Respectfully submitted, 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT To the Parish President and Members of the Tangipahoa Parish Comieil Amite, Louisiana 

109 West Minnesota Park Park Place Suite 7 Hmrmaond, LA 70403 VOICE: (504) 542-6372 FAX: (504) 345-3156 
KENTWOODO~TICE P.O. Box 45- 602 Fiflh~ Kentwood, LA70444 VOICE:(504)229-5955 FAX:(504) 229-5951 MEMBERS American Inslitute of (!F'A.~ Society of Louislana CPA5 

We have audited the accompanying primary government financial statements of Tangipahoa Parish Council, Louisiana, as of and for the year ended December 31, 1996, as listed in the table of contents. These primary government financial statements are the responsibility of Tangipahoa Parish Council, l.,ouisiana's, management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these primary government financial statements based on our audit 
We conducted our audit in accordance with generally aeeepWA auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and the provisions of Office of Management and Budget Circular A-] 28, Audits of State andLocal Governments. Those standards and OMB Circular A-I 2~ require that we plan and perfornl the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the primary government financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the primary government fmaneial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall primary govermnent financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. A primary government is a legal entity or body politic and includes all funds, organizations, institutions, agencies departments, and offices that are not legally separate. Such legally separate entities arc referred to as component units. In our opinion, the primary government financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the primary government of Tangipahoa Parish Council, Louisiana, as of December 31, 1996 and the results of its operations and cash flows of it.'; proprietary fund types for the year then ended in confonnity with generally accepted accounting principles. 
However, the primary government financial statements, b~~anse they do not include the fmaneial data of component units of Tangipahoa Parish Council, Louisiana, do not purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of the Tangipahoa Parish Council, Louisiana, as of December 31, 1996, and the results of its operations and cash flows of its proprietary fund types for the year then ended in conformity with generally accepted accotmting principles. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on die primary govermnent financial statements taken as a whole. The combining and individual fund and account group financial stat~ments and schedules listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the primary government fmancial statements of Tangipahoa Parish Council, Louisiana. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the primmy government financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly presented in all material respects in relation to the primary government fmancial statements taken as a 
Hammond, Louisiana June 4, 1997 


